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We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial statements of3l INFOTECH BPO LIMITED ("the
Compony''l which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as the "the lnd AS financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3f,2020, and its profit and total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our respo nsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finonciol Stotements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants
of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical respo nsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the lnd AS financial statements.

(i

l\3r
7+

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF 3I INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Other information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Management Oiscussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report and Corporate Governance, but does not include the lnd AS financial statements and our
audito/s report thereon. The above stated reports are expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance concluslon thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the lnd AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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Management's Responslbllity for the lnd AS Flnanclal Statemcnts

The company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair vlew of

the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash

flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting poticies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

prepara on and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparlng the lnd AS financial statements, the Board of Directors t is responsible for assessing the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audlt of the lnd AS Flnanclal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these lnd AS financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. we also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is hiSher than

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 1a3(3Xi) of the

Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to

Page 2 of 9
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When we read the above stated reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,

we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with Sovernance.
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continue as a going concern lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
Ch.rilEd A.co!.ltnl!we--€fe-

required to draw attention an ou

financial statements or, if such

conclusions are based on the aud

However, future events or conditi

concern.

r audito/s report to the related disclosures in the lnd As

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion' Our

it evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report'

ons may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements'

includingthedisclosures,andwhetherthelndASfinancialstatementsrepresentthe
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation'

Materia|ity is the magnitude of misstatements in the lnd AS financial statements that, individually or

in .ggr"g.t", makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of

the lnd AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our

work;and(ii)toevaluatethe'effectofanyidentifiedmisstatementsinthelndASfinancial
statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit anj significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit'

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence' and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters th; may-reasonably be thought to bear on our independence' and

where applicable, related safeguards

(1)

extent aPPlicable.

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge .nd b"li"f were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid lnd AS

financial statements.

b} ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

lnd As financial statements have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

c) The company does not have any branches. Hence, the provisions of section 143(3xc) is not

applicable.

d) The Balance sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive lncome, the

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

e) ln our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the lndian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules,2014.

f) ln our opinion, there are no financial transactions or matters which have any adverse effect on the

functioning of the comPanY.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order")' issued by the Central

Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the ,,Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the

'\
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(3)

(4)

g)onthebasisofthewrittenrepresentationsreceivedfromthedirectorsasonMarch3t,2o2o
takenonrecordbytheBoardofDirectors,noneofthedirectorsisdisqualifiedasonMarch3l,
2O2O frcm being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act'

h)Thereisnoadverseremarkrelatingtothemaintenanceofaccountsandothermattersconnected
therewith.

i)WithrespecttoadequacyofinternalfinancialcontrolsoverfinancialreportingoftheCompany
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B"'

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we

reportasunderwithrespecttotheothermatterstobeincludedintheAuditor'sReportin
accordance with Rule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, ln our opinion and to

thebestofourinformationandaccordingtotheexplanationsgiventous:

(i)TheCompanyhasdisclosedtheimpactofpendinglitigationsonitsfinancialpositionas
referred to Note 24 to the lnd AS financial statement'

(ii)Thecompanydidnothaveanylons.termcontractsincludingderivativecontracts;assuchthe
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise'

(iii)Therehasbeennodelayintransferringamountswhichwererequiredtobetransferredto
the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company'

According to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by the

.o.p.ny-toitsdirectors.Accordingly,provisionsofSectionlgToftheactrelatingtothe
remuneration to directors are not applicable'

For GMJ & Co

chartered Accountants
(F R N.: 03429w1

9W73

D

0

(cA .Ma eshwari)
Pa ner
Membership No.: 038755

UDIN : 20038755AAAA8A6718

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21,2020
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Re: 3l INFOTECH BPO LlMlTEo

Annexure 'A' to the lndePendent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of

our rePort of even date)

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment'

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at regular

i""..fi, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the company and

the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical

verification.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination

of records of the company, the Compan'i does not hold any immovable propertY Therefore

paragraph3 (i) (c) is not applicable'

As The company is a service company, primarily rendering software servlces Accordingly it

does not hold any physical tnveniories during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company'

Ouring the year, the company has not granted any loans' secured or unsecured to

.oipInl"., iirms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register

maintainedundersectionlsgoftheAct.Therefore,theprovisionsofClause3(iii)(a),(iii)
(b) and (iii) (c) ofthe said order are not applicable to the Company'

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' during the

year, the Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security in

,"rp"at of any Ioans to any party covered under section 185 and section 185 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

lnouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous'thecompany
hasnotacceptedanydepositsfrompublicwithinthemeaningofSectionT3toT6ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under'

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section

148 (1) of the Companies Act 2013, for any of the services rendered by the Company'

Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable'

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination

ofrecords,thecompanyisgenerallyregularindepositingamountsdeducted/accruedin
respect of undlsputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value

addedtax,dutyofcustoms,servicetax,cessandothermaterialstatutoryduesAs
explainedtoustheCompanydidnothaveanyduesonaccountofemployees,state
insurance and duties of excise.

(a)

(b)

(c)

l ,

lt.

(a)

\
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undi
chlddtd A.arn6.ls

sputed amounts PaTafre--_-
in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears except for Provident fu nd which amounts to Rs

64,379 as at March 3L,2o2o for a period more than six months fro m the date they became

(b)

payable.

According to the books of accounts and records as produced and examined by us in

accordan-ce with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia' as at March 31'2020' the

i"ff"*i"C are the particulars of the dues that have not been deposited on the account of

dispute.

Name of the
5tatute

Nature of the
Dues

Forum where
dispute is pending

Financialyear
to which the

amount
relates

Employee's
State lnsurance

Act, 1948

Employees
State
lnsurance-
Eslc)

5,47 ,402
Tis Hazeri Court,

New Delhi

2006 to 2007

lncome Tax Act,

1951

lncome Tax 4,7r2,O76 commissioner of
lncome Tax Appeals

2009-2010

lncome Tax Act,

1961

9,05,891 2072-2013

lncome Tax Act,

1961

lncome Tax commissioner of
lncome Tax APPeals

2013-20t4

v t

ix.

x

As per Supplementary Restructuring Agreement in terms of Debt Restructuring Scheme to

the Master Restructuring ngreement dated 30th March,2012 held between 3i lnfotech

Liri,"d,HoldingcompanyandtheLenders,duesrepayabletothefinancialinstitutionby
the company hid recognized in the Holding Company The company does not have any

dues to the Government or Debenture Holders'

Thecompanyhasnotraisedanymoneybywayofinitialpublicofferorfurtherpublicoffer
(including debt instruments) during the year or in the recent past The company does not

have any term loan.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information given to us, no

materialfraudbythecompanyoronthecompanybyitsofficersoremployeeshasbeen
noticed or reported during the year)

According to the information and explanations provided to us by and based on our

examination of the records of the company, the company has not paid/provided any

managerial remuneration. Therefore clause 3(xi) of the order is not applicable to the

€ompany.

According to the information and explanation given to us the company is not a Nidhi

company. Therefore the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not

applicable to the comPanY.

x

Amount in
Rs

lncome Tax Commissioner of
lncome Tax ApPeals

!7 ,47 ,624

xt.

I
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x t. According to information and explanations given us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

sectionslTTandl88ofcompaniesAct,2ol3anddetailsofsuchtransactionshavebeen
disclosed in the lnd AS financial statements as required by lnd AS 24' Related Party

Disclosures specified under section 133 of the Act read with the relevant rules issued

thereunder, Refer Note 25 to the lnd AS financial statements'

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully

orpartlyconvertibledebenturesduringtheyear.Therefore,theprovisionsofclause3(xiv)of
the Order are not applicable to the Company'

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into

any non-lash transactions with directors or persons connected with him under the provisions

of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013'

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45'lA of the Reserve Bank of

lndia Act, 1934
xvt.

For GMJ & Co

Chartered Accountants
(FRN:103429W)

0!t9 )0

Ma shwari)

Pa er
MembershiP No.: 038755

UDIN : 20038755AAAABA5718

Place : Mumbai
Oate : MaY 21,2020

I
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Re: 3l INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

Annexure -'B' to the Auditors' RePort

(ReportonthelnternalFinancialcontrolsunderclause(i}ofSub.section3ofSectionl43ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"))

Wehaveauditedtheinterna|financialcontrolsoverfinancialreportingof,,3llNFoTEcHBPo
Limited,,(..theCompany.,}asofMarch3t,2ozoinconjunctionwithourauditofthelndASfinancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date'

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

Thecompany'smanagementisresponsibleforestablishingandmaintaininginternalfinancial
controls based on the internal control over flnancial reporting criteria established by the company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reportlng issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants

of lndia ('lCAl'). These responsibilities inciude the design' implementation and maintenance of

adequateinternalfinancialcontrolsthatwereoperatingeffective|yforensuringtheorderlyand
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its

assets, the prevention and detection ofirauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the tiiely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under

the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' ResPonsibilitY

ourresponsibilityistoexpressanopiniononthecompany.sinternalfinancialcontrolsoverfinancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Audit of lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the ,,Guidance Note,,) and the standards

onauditing,issuedbylcAlanddeemedtobeprescribedundersection143(10}ofthecompaniesAct,
2ol3,totheextentapplicabletoanauditofinternalfinancialcontrols,bothapplicabletoanauditof
lnternal Financial controls and both issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia' Those

standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

performtheaudittoobtainreasonableassuranceaboutwhetheradequateinternalfinancialcontrols
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively ln

all material resPects'

ourauditinvolvesperformingprocedurestoobtainauditevidenceabouttheadequacyofthe
internal financial controls syst# over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness' our audit

of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtalning an understanding of internal

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and

testing and evaluating the deslgn and operatinS effectiveness of internal control based on the

.rr"rr"d ,irk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

forourauditopiniononthecompanysinternalfinancialcontrolssystemoverfinancialreporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company,s internal financial control over financial reportinE is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company,s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

1,\
CC
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(1)pertaintothemaintenanceofrecordsthat,inreasonabledetail,accuratelyandfairlyreflectthe
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles' and that receipts

and expenditures of tne companv are 6eing made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the iornptny't assets that could have a material effect on the

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls' material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be delected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over financial reporting;ay become inadequate because of changes in conditions'

;r ihat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate'

financial statements.

For GMJ & Co

chartered Accountants
(FRN: 42eW)

0
i^ts

(cA Maheshwari)
Pa ner
Membership No.: 038755

UDIN : 20038755AAAA8A5718

Place : Mumbai
Oate : May 21, 2020

Opinion

lnouropinion,theCompanyhas,inallmaterialrespects'anadequateinternalfinancialcontrols
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as at Ma;ch 31,2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia'

\\
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FoTGMJ & CO

Chartered Aacountantt
.103429W

ti

M.No.:038755
UDIN : 20O3675SAAAA8A6718

het
d n lyer

DIN

NaviMumbai
Oate: May 21,2020

Aj Kumer

Dire;ator

DIN:07552605

Particulari Not6 March 31,2020 MaEh 31, 2019

20,54,45,260

91,76,W
13,19,65,0E2

26,07,593

1,50,E42

23,05,14,885

1,06,52,108

L0,85,73,@7

40,93,155

34,93,44,777

4,80,39,961

2,25,33,2t0
4,05,40,913

L45,72,589

35,38,33,155

4,52,45,28L

2,25,66,sO4

3.95.,to.s14

2,L4,62,230

12,96,46,67 3 t2,88,14,529

47,90,31,450 48,26,47 ,684

10,00,000

43,14,50,7 29

10,00,000

41,36,58,483

43,24,5O,7 29

72,94,268

41,45,58,483

87,13,453

9,57,9s2

1,94,05,418

1,62,766

57,68,061

1,10,64,218

9,27,O3E

72,94,268

94,94,643

1,17,53,335

20,59,724

87.13,453

3,92,86,453 s,92,75,74A

Current Uabillties
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)Trade Payables

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisei

Others
(ii) l-ease Liabilities (lND A5116)

(iii) Other Financial Uabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities
(.) Provisions

TOTAL

TOTAI-

ASSETS

Non-Current Assats

(a) Propeny, Plant and Equipment
(a.1lRi8ht to use assets
(b) financial Assets

(i) Other Financial Assets

(c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)

(d) Other Non-Cu.rent Assets

EQUITY AND LIASII.ITIES

Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity

TotalEquity

Liabilitie5

Non Currant Llabilitl6
(a)Provisions

3

4

5

6

7

8

4

6

9

10

11

12

13

14

11

47,90,37,450 48,26,47,6U

Navi Mumbai
Oate : May 21, 2O2O

2 ol41

3i INFOTECH BPO TIMITED

BATANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2O2O

Significant Accountin8 Polider and Notes forming part ofthe Financial Statements 1 to 34

As pcr our .epo.t of evan data attadted For ahd on behalf of tha board

5.

12,81,056

3,46,76j90

Currcnt a3gcts

(a) Financial Asset5

(ilTrade Receivablet

(ii) Gsh and Gsh Equivalents

(iii) Other Finan.ial tusets
(b) Other Current Assets



Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 34

As per our repon ol even date.ttached For and on behal, ofthe board

(Amount in lN

;or GMJ & CO

Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 1O3429W

9*.t
;;#.::"r" lyera umat

M.No.:038755
UDIN : 2O03875sAqArABA5718

Chai

otN:

Navi Mumbai
Oate : May 21,2020

Particulars Notes 2019-20 201&19

4A.97 .94 335
2,24,31,r31

45,44 ,63,tt2
2,54,04,700

57,22,32,O72 47,94,67,8,.2

25,56,18,350

L4,22,46,294

93,757
20,ot,627

5,19,49,927

24,27 ,79 ,3t7
16,24,80,416

70,582
13,34,065

5,27,97,227

49,19,09,943 45,94,6r,667

2,O3,22,r29 2,M,06,745

2,o3,22,L29 2,04,05,145

44,28,O00

{11,70,862)
9,17,O17

36,05.000

38,O7,268

39,57,000

t,6r,47,974 90,41,878

22,27,43s
(s,s9,091)

(10,31,185)

2,68,108

16,62,344 17,63,077].

EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense

Cost of third party products and services

Finance cotts
Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total Exp€nser (ll)

Profit/(lo!s) belore exceptional items and tax (l-ll)
Exceptional ltems
Profi t/(loss) bef o,e tax

Tax €xpense:

Current tax
Adjustment oftax relating to earlier periods

oeferred tax
Plotit/(loss) lo, the period

A. Othe, Compieheniive ihcome not to be reclasrified to profit.nd
lois in subsequent periodi:

Remeasurement ofgains (losses)on defined benefit plans

lncome tax effect

Other Comp.ehensive income roathe year, net o, tax
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOO, NEI OF TAX

RCVENUE

Revenue from operations (net)

Other income
Total Revenue (ll

1,78,10,318

L7

t8
19

20

2t

82,78,801

Earnintr per rhare ror prolit attributable to equity shareholders

Basic EPS

Dalluted EPS

22

161.48

161.48

Navi Mumbai
Oate : May 21,2

Director

OIN:07652605
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3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2O2O

15

16

90.42

90.42
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I The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the 'lndirect Method' as set out in IND AS 7 on ,,statement of Cashflow ,'

notified by the Companies Act,2013-

2.Previous year's fi8ures have been reSrcuped /rearran8ed whercver necessary to conform to the curlent year,r presentation
Significant Accountin8 Policies and Notes formin8 pan ofthe Financialstatements 1to 34

As pc, our repon of evan date attached for and on bahalf o, the board

ForGM, & CO

Chartered Arcountants
F.Rdo 10x2sw

:Fi^ r--

;"#:'J' d

DIN: 942
Oirector
DIN:07652505M.t{o.:038755

UDIN : 2m38755AAAABA5718

Navi Mumbai
Oate: May 21, 2020

Hct

-/dI

Paniculars
Notes For the year ended

Mar.h 31,2020
Fo. the yaar end€d

Mar.h 31,2019

CASH TI.OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Proltt/(Losi) befo.e incom€ tax trom:
Adjurtments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

lnterest in(ome
Allowance fo. doubtfuldebts and advances

Finance cost5

Change in opc.atint assets and liabillties:
(lncrease)/Decrease in trade receivables

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables

(lncrease) in other fi nancial assets

(lncrease) in other current assets

lncrease/{decrease} in other financial liability
lncrease in employee benefit obligations
lncrease in other cu.rent liabillties

20,o1,627

11,94,34,7151
(37,983)

36,502

2,O3,22,129

127,56,6911

11,s5,93,671l
4.35,03.940

28,89,641

l'27,26,5821
(3,30,436)

(5,99,116)

13,34,06S

{2,33,06,660)
1,47,385

2,04,06,144

17,44,63,7421

18,23,s9,11s)
ls,63,s2,307

{6,94,516)
(s9,31,9s6)

10,75,118
(1,96,29,128)

Cash generated from operations 2,71,74,6!4 1,2929,n3
less: lncome taxes paid 12,66,49 ,213\ \3,79,47,8891
Net cesh I.om / (used in) Operating Activities before Exceptional item 5,25,421 (s0,r7,986)
Exceptional ltem
Net cath inflow from operating activities s,25,421 (50,17,985)

CASH FLOWS TROM II{VESTI G ACTIVITIES:

Payments for property, plant and equipment (48,199) (37,31,150)

Net cash outflow trom investing activitiet (48,199) (37,11,150)
CASH FLOWS FROM fINANCII{G ACTIVITITS

Payment oI [ease rental (5,10,s15)

llet cash inflow (outflow) trom financing activities (5,10,s16)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Carh and Cash Equivalenr at the beginnint ofthe tinancialyear
tffects ofexchan8e rate changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

(33,294)

2,25,66jM
(87,49,135)

3,13,15,640

2,25,3r,210 2,25,66,5O4

IrIII

3i INFOTECH BPO TIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FTOWS FOR THE Y

NaviMumbai
Date : May 21,2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year
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Particulars
Balance at the
Beginning of the
period

Chantes in Equity

sha.E capital during
th€ year

Balance at the end ot
the period

March 31, 2019
Numbers

Amount
1,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

March 31, 2020
Numbers

Amount
1,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

B Other Equity

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forminS part of the Financial Statements 1 to 34

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board

(Amount in INR

(Amount in INR)

y Kumar

For GMJ & CO

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 103429W

s. Maheshwari

Navi Mumbai
Date : May 21, 2020

an lyer

Chairm

DIN: 942

Navi Mumbai
Date : May 21, 2020

Dir€ctor

DIN:07652605

d

Panner

M.No.:038755
UOIN : 20038755AAAA846718 CH

z a

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars
Securities Premium

Re5erve
Retained Earnings Total other equity

As at April 01, 2Ol8
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

50,7 4,7 5,t52 (10,20,9s,470)

90,41,878

17,63,O77].

40,5X,79,682

90,41,878

17,63,O77].
Tolal comprehensive income for the p€riod 82,7a,807 82,78,801
As at March 31, 2019

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Lease Transition effect

50,7 4,7 5,752 (9,38,16,669)

1,67,47,974

t6,62,144
(78,072)

41,36,s8,il83

1,67,47,974

76,62,344

(18,072)
Total comprehensive income for the period L,77,92,246 t,?7,92,246
As at March 31, 2020 17,60,24,4231 43 ,t4,50,729
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3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIW AS AT MARCH 31, 2O2O

A Equity Shar€ Gpital

50 ,1 4 ,7 5,752



I CorDor.t! lrform.tlon
3i lnfot.ch 8PO Umit€d lrefcrred lo as 'the Conpaqf) i! a cnSagcd in B!!ln.!s pro.6s outsourc.d r!rvi...
Th. Comp.ny i5 a puui. lim't.d Co.npany incorpdated and dorni€iled an lndi..Th! rcdst.red ot6c. o, thc corhp.ny is locat.d .t E-1, Low.r Grdrnd
Floo. Jhandrwela €xtcnsion N€u Nhi-1rm55
Th. financi.l statlmmts tor the y.rr .nd.d Mar.h 31,2020 w.r. approv€d by th. 8o.rd of Directors and authoris.d Io. isru. on May 21,2020.

3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2O2O

2 srtnift.nt A.coumin! Polkns

(iv) Provirbns.nd ContiB.rn li.bllhies
A provition it.e(o$ised v.hen the Comp.ny h.r. pres€nt obligation .t . ,eiult ofpastevcnt.nd it k probabl€ that.n outflow ofrEources
will be rcqun€d to settle th! obliletion, in reiped ol which a r.li.ble 6timat. can b. mrde. Provilioh5 (ercludin! r€tn€ €nt bene-fitj and
cornp.nt.tad absenceslar. not ditcoontad to it5 present valu. and .re determi.€d bas€d on b6t €5tim.te r.qui..d to tetlte the obtit tion
at th. Brl.nce rheet d.te. Th.!e are retewcd at each aabnce sheer dat. a.d adjurred ro refed the cur.nt b€rt enimat€.. Conti.gent
liabilitiet e.e not re.opised in the finu nci.l etalem€nts. a conlinlent.rret in n.iih6 .ecognired no. dirclosed in $e financiat sratementj.

al St tcllr.nt or.ornpllrE
ln ,€cord.nc€ with th. notiic.ton issu.d by lh€ Ministry of Corpo.:t. Affrh, th. Co.np.ny h.s .dopted with .ff.ct f.orn April 1,2016 lndian
Accolntint Standardr (r.ferr.d to ar 'lnd as').ori6cd und€r the Comp.naer (lndian Accountn! Srand.rds) Rolcs, 2015 r..d wth Scction 133 of
the Compa.ie5 Act 2013.

b) Berb of p.rp.r.tion
Thet€ financial rtatemeots have been pr€pa.ed on th€ historical cost basis, except tor cenain financi.l in5trument5 which are measured at fair
vdlues.t the cnd of €ach r.po.tint p€riod,.r explained in the accountint policies b.low. Histori.alco3t ir gencrally be!€d on the fai. valu€ ofth€
coneideration Aiven io exchan$ lor pod5 and 5ervicer. Fai, value ir th€ prire thal wolld b€ r...ivrd to r€llin isr€t or p.id to tr.nrfer a li.bility in
an orderly tranr.ction b€tw€cn h..let penicip.nt at th€ me.turement d.te-

() Us. ot dlD.t€' .nd ,udgments
Th. prepiration of the5e ffnrnci.l stal€menlr in confdmity with th€ r€.otnitim and m.aiuremed pnntipler of lnd AS.€qrrires th. manatement
of the Company to make eltim.ter .nd isruftptjons tha! affect the report€d b.lances of.sscts .nd liabilitie3, disclolur€s relating to conrantent
liabiliti€s ar at the date of the fin.ncial rtatemenb .nd the reported.mo!nts ofincome and €xpens. for th. perio4 pres€nted.

Eltimates and und€rlyiry asrumptaons ar€ r€viewd ofl an ontoin! b.sis. Redsions to accountjq ..timat s ar. r.colnisd in dtc p€riod in whach

fte €rtim.t6 ar€ raised and future periods are aff!.t€d.

(ey roorcet ol ertimation of uncc.tainty at the date of the fnancial strt€menr, which may caus. a mat.rial .diustme ro rhe carryint amolnts of
ass.t!.nd liabilhier sithin the nett in.ncial ye.r, .re in r.spe.t of impatment ot inv6tmcn!5, usefiJlliv.s ol prope.ty, plinr and €quipm€nt,
rJluarion of d€f€red t.x.rretr, provilions and coilintenr liabilitier.

(i) lmp.arlYt.rtt ot lnvlslncnts
The Conp.nY rlviews ils canying v.lu. of invrttm€nts cani€d at amortised corl annuelly, o. mo.c fr.qu.ntt whei th€r. ir ao indic.rion for
imp.irment. lfthe rccover.bl€ emount i5le!5 th3n its.arryiE amoun! the imp.tment losr is a..omt.d fo..

(ill Ureful llycs of prop.rty, pbnt rnd lqulpm.rr
lhe Co.npany r!vie$/s the utefirl lit of property, planr and .qulpment:t the .nd of E.ch reponiq period. Thir r€aJ56sm€nt may rerull tn
change in d.pre.iataon cxp.nr. in future period5.

llll) V.lu.thn ot d.r.rrd t.r .!s.tr
Ihe Company r.vi€wt the cirryin! amounl of def€red tar assets at the eod of each reportin3 period- fte poli.y fo{ th. same har b€en
e&l.io€d uode.l{ot.5

0

HcE

L\)
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3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2O2O

.) lnt€r€n / oivldlnd ln om!
DavidCYld in.orne ir re.orded whcn th. ridt to .eccive paym€ni as establashd. lnt.r6t inco.n. is re@gnirecl urin! $e eIf.div. inter6t me$od.

0 1..s..
The Comp.ny evaloatss if.n arraot.me quali6.5 to b€ a l€as. as pcr the r.qui..mrnts of lnd AS 116. rdentific.tion ot.leas. r.quir.r silnifcent
judgment. Ihc Co.npany user si$ific.ntjudtem.nt in ars.srang th.l€as. tcrm (in.ludlnS anticip.ted rcnet,rls).nd th€.pplk.bh dis.ount.at..
The Cohpany determines th€ leare lcm ar th€ no.!-{.ncellable period of a l.as. .diun.d with .ny option to enend o. trrmturat€ $€ lealc, if th.
ute of ru(h option i3 reaion.bly cerlain. Ihe Cmpany mat6 .n asressmenl on th€ erp€cted laase term ofi a lea5€-by-leat€ baiis and ther€by
asset5et whelher it i5 reasonably cenain that any option5 to €xtand or t€rminatelhe contract willbe erarcBed. ln evalu.tint the leas€ tem, th€
Company co.sid€.t all.eler.nt f.ct! .nd circumrtanc! thal (r€ate ao €(ono.nic in.entive lor the Co.rpany to €xcencise th€ option to €n.nd th.
leate, or not to exercit€ tha optio.! lo t€rminrte the leate. lh€ Co.npany r€vi$s th. b.sa larm if lhcre ii r cha4€ ifi the nonran€.llabh p.riod of
a le.rE. The dilcount rate ! 8€n€rally bared o.r thr incremental borrowint rate sp.(illc to thE laa! beiq cvalu.tad or fo, z ponfolio of lea3.5 with
simil.r ch.rrderinics (Ref.r notc 31).

l. as.' &colrntina pollca

Th€ Company rs a hssaa

rh€ Company', leas. astet clats6 primarily consitt of l€.tet for buildings. The company arr6r.r whether . contlact .ont.ins a lease, at in.eptio.r
ol a .ontrad. a cont..ct is, or cont.ins, . Iear. if the cont!.ct conveyr th. ritht to control the u5e of .n id€ntijl€d ass"r for a p.riod of tim. in
erchante lor contideration. To arte5t wh€ther . contr.ct conv€ys th. ridt to control the ure of en id€ntifi.d asr.t the Cornpany a3s€$6 whlrh€r
: (i) rh. contrad invdv6 thc u5. oI .n identified .rset (ii) the Comp.ny har rubst.nti.lv .ll ot th€ .cono.nic b€n.fiB from us€ of th€ .r5€r th.oud
the period of the lear€ and (iii)the Comp.ny has th..idt to dir..t rhe ure of rhe asslr.

Al the d.te ol commen.ef,ent of the lease, the Co.npa.y ,eroEnte3 a ri3ht-of-ure (ROU) arset and a correrponding le.ic liabality for allleat€
arrrnlem.nuin which itir.lessee, €r€ept lor leases with a term of 12 months or l€sr (short-tlrm leas6) and lowvrluelearer. Forth€5e
thort-term and low-value lerter, the Company r€cotnn€s th€ lease payments a5.n operati^g eipense on. strai;ht-line barir ove. the term ofthe

Certain l..te irangements includB the optionr to enend o, terminat€ the l.ase beIo.e rhe end of the leare term. ROU.srers and le.5e tiabititi€t
includer these optionr when it ir reasonably certain that they willbe erercired.

The ROU.ss€ts at€ inilially recolnn€d al con, which .om pris6 lh. initi.l.mount of th€ l.as! liability rdjurr.d tor.ny l€.se paym.nrr m.d. at o.
Prior to the (ommeffemenl date of the lear€ plue any ,nitial direct coslr l€lr any leas. inc.ntiv* Th€y a.€ eubs€qu€ntv mearured rt cogt t€55

accumul.ted d€preci.lion and ilnpairnent loss€s.

CHI
a'z

+
\
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d) AGYGnUG r.colnttlon
The Comp.ny .arn$rimarily ftoln providin! Tranradion r.rvir6.
ll{D AS 11S

R.v.nue i5 r..o$is.d upon trinsfer of control of pro.nis.d prodlcts or s6yic6 ro cono.ne.i in .n .moo lh.t r.fl€cB tn! consid.r.tion lvhich
the Cornp.ny €)p€clr to ..r.iv. in €rchante io. rhos€ products o. 5€dic.s.
. Revenue from time and matedal and job contr.cti ie re.ognired on outpur basas m..sur.d by units d.liv.r.d, .fforts .xpended, nu.nb.. of
transactioot proreJred, etc.
. Revcnua rclated to fix€d price mai enance and suppo.t rervice5 contracB wh.r! th. Company ir standiry re.dy to provida r€rvice! i5

rerotniJ€d btrld on tima clapted modc and rev€nua it nraiSht linad orei tha p.riod of p.rformanc..

. Unbill€d Rev.nu! is reco!.isld l,hcn th€r. ir ctc.ss of rer.nu. earned over billingr o.r contr.€B. Unbill€d Rernu€ i! cl.rsifi.d .s unbill.d
r€venu€ (o.ly act of im,oiciq is pendi.t)wh.n th€re ie uncondiiional ritht to re.eiv. ca5h, rnd o.ly par3.t€ of time i5 rcqukld,.r p.r contactual
termr. Un€arn.d rlveoue ir r.co&is.d when th.r. is billint' in €!c.ss of r.vmu6. Thc billina schedulc5 .gre.d with curto.n.rs in lud. p.riodic
p.rformance based p.ym.nts and / or milestonc b.s€d prog.ss p.ymmB. lnvoicE .re p.yabl. within ontr.ctu.lly ag..d crldh p6iod.
Coorra.ts ar. subj.ct to modifi.ation to a{couni fo. .han&s in contr.ct rp€cific.rio.r and requircm€nts. Th. Conpany r.n?{/! modifi(ation to
co.t act in coniunction with th. o.idnal contr.ct, barir whlch lhc v.ns.dion pricc coold bc allo<.t€d to . n€w p..fro.manc. oblitation, or
transaction pri(e of an €xistiq obligation could underto a chante. ln the event tr.ns.ction prk. is refsed for etstint oblitation, . cumulative
.djuetment is a.co0rt.d fo..



ROU.ssetr:re deprecialed hofr the commenrement d.te on e straidt'line barir ov€r the shoner of th.lease t€.m.nd uretullit. ofthe
underlyi4 aeset. SOU aisett ar. evaluat.d for r.coverability when.ver ev€nts or ch.n$s an cir.umrtanc.s indicate thrt then..rrying amoonts
,hey nol b€ recov€r.ble. For th€ purpose of impairm€ni testin& th. re.ovrr.ble amount (i.e. th€ hi8her ot the hir vilue 16r cort to rell .nd thc
value'in-ur.)is det€rmined oo.n indivjdu.l.sret basit unles3 the astet do€! f,otte..r.t. c.sh ffowr that are l.G.V lndep.nddt of thoe€ from
othcr asieB.ln suchcaser, th€ r€cov€r.ble amount ir d€t€m incd for th. Cash Gend.tint Unit {CCU)to f,,hich the ass.t belont'.

Tl'€ le.re liability is initialty me.surd at amortir.d cost at th. prerent v.lu. ot the futurc leare payment'. Th€ 1.a5. p.ymenG ar. dBcounred

usint the int€.€st rate implicit in th.l.ase or, if not rcadah d.t.rminabl., uring$€ incrcmcnt.l bo.rowint rates in thG country of domicll. ot th.i€
leare!. t€ar. liabiliti€s ar! remeasur.d with a .orreepondin3 adjunmcnt to the rel.ted ROU a35er if th. Company dang.5 itr .ss.rrment of
wheth€r it willo(ercise.n en.nsion or a t.rminrlion option.ROU arr?t if th. Comp.ny chan8.! its.isessment of qfi€th€r it will.rercir. an

ext€nsion or a termination option.

Tha ConDary as a l.rsor

Leatrt fot which thc Cofipany i5 a l.stoi i5 clastificd .s a financ. o. ope{atant 1..s.. Wh.ncvcr tha t.rmr o, thr lerJa translcr subnadj.lly .ll th!
riltt and rcsardt of ow.ership lo the le55eg the contract i5 da5rified.5 a 6nanc.l€.sc, Allother bases.re clarnfi€d ar op€retint la.!e5.

When the Cornpany is an intermediat. lessor, it accou^t! for it' int€r.sts in th. heid le.se and thc sublear€ s€p.rately. th.subleare ir cl.ssifi.d at
a ffnanc€ or ope..tint 1..!e W .eference to rhe ROU .rs€t a.isiry from th. he.d l.are.

For operatint lear€!, r€nl.lin.ode is recogniEd on.5lraidt lin€ basis ov.r th. t.r of th. r.lev?nt l€.s..

gl cosr rlco3nilirn
Co end epenr.s are recoFii€d vrhen inc'rr.d and have b.cn clestifi€d ac€ordint totheir natur..

Th. costs of thc Cornp.ny ere bro.dly ..te!o.ired in €mploy.€ b€n.ft s(pcns.s, co5r of third 9.rt producti .nd !eNic.', fin.nc. .ostr
,depr..iation ,nd .mortisation and other rxp.ns.s. Employcc ben.fit lrp€nrcs indld. eflploy.. compcnsatlm, illow.ncB paid, conrriburio.r to
variour tundr and rtafi w.f.rc ep.nre3. Cost ot third perty products Bnd r€wicls mainly irxlud. E rd.s. of roftw.r! lkenlei .nd produEu ,fe€t
to .n.rnal consuhants ,con of running iti faclliti6, cost of .quipmcnt and othcr og.ratin! .xp.ns.s. Financ. cost in.!ud.. inr.rcst .nd orh6
borrowint cort. Other expenr$ it .n agtret.tion ot c6t5 whi.h are individu.lly not m.t€riil ru.h a3 .ornmission .nd broterale, printint .nd
ltationery ,cornmunicaioo, repairr and m.inten.nce el..

L.as. liabilily and ROU .rletr ha!! b!!n s.p.ntdy prg€ntcd in th. Ealance Sh..t. and le.r. p.ym.nB h.w b.€n cl.rsif.d .s 6n.n in! cash

Th. functional cur€ncy of th€ Company is lndian rup€. {lNRl

Foreif er<hange differencE reFrded ar an adjuttmentlo bo.rowi.t corlr are presented in the rt:tementof profit and lots, within fin.nc€cosri.
Allother for.i$.xchante g.in! and losrer:re pr$ent.d in lhe etat€n.nt of profit.nd lo$ orl: net barir within othe, &ins/(lostesl.

Non mon€t.ry ass.B rnd liabilhaer lhat ere mearured in termr of hisioric.l .ost in foreitn currm.ies are not retlanslated.

NorFmonet.ry itcms lhat ar€ m€aturd .t f.ir value in . for.ign.urrency ere tr.nslated using th. crch.nte r.t6 ar the d.te when the fair vrtue

For€i$ curr.ncy transactions are tranll.t.d inro th. tunctional cu..ency usinS th. .x.han3e r.te5 rt rhe d.t€r of th. tr.ns..tionr. toreip
o(chante tains and lo35!s r6uliing from the 3ettlcm€.t o, ruch tranr.dionr end fom $c rranrl.rion of monetary .sr?tr and liabilhi€t
d€nornin.t€d in fo{€ign (urr€nti€5 .t ye.. lnd cxchant€ ratei are f.n€r.lly r€(ogniild in Statem€nt ot profit or lors. A mon€trry irern for whid
settl.ment i! neither plann€d nor liket to occur in the for6.€abl. tutur. is consid.red ai a pan of the entivs nct invlstm.nt in $rr foreitn

)
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CrrItltrt imoltE t r.s
Curent income lax alrets .nd liabiliti.s arc mc.5ur.d .t ihc amount !!p.d.d to b. r.cov€r.d from o. p.id ro th€ t.xatim .uthodtj6- -rr! t.r
r.tes aod tax lawi us€d to (omput. the amount ar. thole lhat an enactd or tubst.ntivet en.cted,.tth! reportint d.te in rhe counnl€r wh.r.
th€ Company op€rat€s and f.€rat€r t x.U. in.ome.

Cu.r.nt in.ome t.x r.l.tint to t.ms ..€ognirld outidc St.tement of p.ofit o. lois i5 r€<otrised olrsid! profit or lors letth.r in oth€r
cornpr.hmeiv. in.orn. or in .quity). Curr.nt tar it.ms .r€ r..qnlred in correlation to thc undcrMnt trans.ctioo .ither in OCI or dir.cth in .qulty.
Manatement periodically ev.luatel posataonr talm in th€ i.x relu.ns with r6pest lo ritu.tioni in which .pplicabl€ t ! re&l.tionr are 3ubi.cl to
interpr€tation and establishes provisaons wher. rppropriate.

3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2O2O

Detlrl€d incom. tarei
Oefened incorne t.x is r..otnised u3in! thc B.lrfte !h€.t app.o.ch. O.f.n.d in.ome t.r .ss"tr and liabiliti6 .rr .c<ogniicd for d.ductibh and
taxabl. tenporary diffcr.nc6 .rBing between thc tex bas. of a$rt5 and li.biliti€r and rh.ir ca,Mng amo!.t, .rept wh€n $e d.terrcd incom.
tex:rires from thr initirl rerolnition of.n .s3€t or liahlity in a tr.nsactioi that is not a busin sr .ombinatiofi and .ffccB n€ith6 accountiry no.
texable profit or lorr .t the time of the rlnraatjon.

D€ferred in<ome tax a55et a.e recotnised to the en€nt that it is probable that t.xabl€ proft will b€ .vailabl€ ag.inn whkh the d.du.ttble
lem por..y ditf€renc€r ..d the c.rry forward ol unused lat (r€dite and unusld tar lorses can bc otilir.d.

It€ carryin8 ,mount of de{errcd inco.ne tat asrets is r€vie\oed .t €ach r€po.tin! dat. and reduc€d ro th€ dt€nt that it ir no lohter probabi€ th.t
sufffcient texabl. proft will be .vail.ble to .llow all or p.rt o, th. d.f.ncd in.ome t.x as!.r to b€ utlir.d.

OefEfl.d tat ase.t nd liatilhi.s .r. m€asured ulint lubstantively dud.d tax rat.i cxpedd to .ppt to t.r.bl. incom. in lh. yc.rr in which the
t.mporary differ.n... .re er(pected ro b€ r€ccivld or r€ttl€d.

D.ferr.d tat assetr and liabilhi.s ,r. ofrsct whrn they r€latc to in.om. t.res l.vi.d by th. sem. taxetion authorig and th. r.l.\ant e ity intend5
to scttl. its .urrmt tax.srets.nd li.bilhier oh a net basi'.

Dere(.d tat $ret5 includ€ Minimum Ah.rnate Tar (MAT) paid in .ccordan € 'nth the tar lew' in l6dia, which L lit.ly to siv. turure e(onomic
ben€fits in th€ form of availability of set off atainst tuturp economic tax li.bility. a.cordintly, MAT is Gcognired.r deferred tax ass€t ln thr Balance
the€t $t'en th€ ,ss€t can be m.asurd r.liably ind it i3 probabl. that th€ fiJture e.oriornic bene"fir .ssociated with th€ arset will b€ re.tis€d.

i) tin nd.lindrumrnt!
A fin.ncial inttrument ie a.y cootr..t that gver rise to a finan ialass.t ol on. entity.nd. finan.i.l liability or €quity innrumenr olanother entity

(i) C.sh.rd Grsh lquiy.Lnt!
Th€ Co.rgany co.side6 all highly liquid finaftial in5trum€nts, which a.e readily convedble into l.o\rn .mounB of carh that ar! subj..t ro an
inrigniffcant ritl of.hang. in value and hanng oraEinal maturitie. of thr.e monthr or lels from th. date of purchar., to b! .ash .quivalenB.
C.sh .nd calh equiv.lenis .o.ri5t of b.lances with bant! which ar. unr.nricr.d for v.ithd.awat and ur:t€.

(ill rinan Ll.ss.ts
hitial rr{oanhbn .nd mc.surament
all fin.nci.l rstets are recognBed initially at hir v.lu€ plus, in the case of ffnancial .s.er5 not r!€o.ded .t f.ir vatue through profit or to.r,
transaction cotts that.r. attiibutebl€ to the acquisirioo ofthe fin:ncial .r5€t. Pur(h.!6 or sat6 of in.nciat.sslts rhat require dclivery of
attets within: time fram. en.blish€d by r€&lation o. contlntion in the ma.tet pl.ce ketular way trades) are re.ognired on th. rrade d.t€,
i.e., the d.te that the Company cornmit! to Dur(hase or tetlth€ asset.

h

9 of 41

Advance tar.r and prolisione for curenl income tares are pres.nl.d in the Balance ehest after off'rening advance tax paid .nd incom€ tax
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(b)The arset's contractualcarh fows represent SPP|

5ub5.qu.rit m€.surcm.nt
For purposer ot tubtequlnt m€alurement, fine.Kial .ssets are (la5sifi.d in folr cat.lories

- D.bt lnstru.rEnt! .t .mo.tlsld ton
A debl instrument' ir measurcd .l !h€ amo.tired coet if both thc iollowin3 .onditlonr :r. met:
a) Ihe asset is held withln a busin.rr mod.l who6. objcdiv€ ir to hold ass€t5 for .ollc.tint cortra.tual c.sh fows, .nd

b) Contredu.l t.rmt of the .tset ,v€ rii€ o.r sp..ified dat s to cash llows thai a.. rol.ly paymenti of pri.<ipal .nd int.r.st (sPPl) on the
pnnripal amoirnt outsiendio&

After inirial m€asur€ment, ru.h financial asr€ts .r. rubrcquentv rne.eured at amo.tiled co uein6 th..ffedav! int6e5t r.tc (ErR)

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taling into account .ny dircounto. premium on acquisition and tu r o, cosG rhr!..e an intetral
pa.t ol lh€ ElR. Ih€ EIR amodisation ir in luded in financ€ in.orne ifl the profrt or lors. Th€ losser aieln! fiom imp.irme .r€ rcropisd
in the proflt or loss. This cat.to{y !.nerally applies to trade.nd other r€ceivebler.

' O.bt instrum.nt ar wIOO
A 'debt instrvhen( i5 cl.ssifi.d as .r rhe FVIOCI it both ofth. followiry crit.ria .r. met:
(.) Ihe ob,ediv. of lh. butin€55 mod€lir.chi€v.d toth by coll€ctint contradu.l r.rh nowr and relliq tt€ finandal .sr€ts, .nd

D€bt instrum.nt! included within th€ FVImI cat€tory a.e m.asurcd initlrlt .s well .r .i ..ch reponin8 dat. .r hir vilu.. tan v.tue
mov?mant! ara recolnird in th€ olh€r cornp..hensiv€ incom. (O€l), 8ori"v.r, th. t oup racolnircr intcran in.o.ne, imp.irm.nt lo6aaa

& revlrtals and for€i$ exchangc gain or lotr in the P&1. On der.cotnition of th. asra, cumulative t.in or lo5s prcvioully r.cqnB.d in
OCI i5 r!.lassifi.d frorn th. .quity to P&L rntcr6t €arn€d urhilst holdin! EVTOCI d.bi inrtrumcnt is .cron.d as intr.st incomc u!in! the
El8 m€thod.

- ocbt inrt unE t at wTPt
FVTPL k a reridual cat.lory tor d.bl instrum€ntr. Any debt innrum.nt, *hidr doer not m.et the criterD fo. <.t€tortzatlon .s ar amonir.d
cos! or.! rVTOCl, i5.l.rsifi.d as rt FVIPL

ln additaon, th. Comp.ny may €led to d€3itn.t.. d.bt instrum.n! which oiherwite m.as.mo.tiz.d con or FVIOCT ..itsi., ar rt EVIPL
How€vlr, euch eiettioa i5 .llow€d only il dcint so reduc.s or .linin.t.s . m..ruremcnt or recolnition incoorirtcncy lrctlfred to at
'a.coontiry matm.tch'). The Co.npaoy h.s not d.iignated .ny d€bt instrummt ar ar FVTPL

oebt iortrum.nts indud€dwithin th. FVTPT catetory.r€ m€.su.ed ar fair yalue wirh all ch.nt6 .c(oFi.ed an rh. P&L

All equitY inv€stments in scop€ of lnd AS 109 ar€ measured at fair velue. Equity inrtrum€ots which .re held fo. tr.din! and contintent
consideration r€.o$is.d by enacqun€rina burin€ss (ombination to which rnd AS103.pplies ar. clasrified.t.t FvTpL For.ttorh6
equitY inttrum€nts,lh€ Comp.ny m.y m.te a. n.evo.able ele.tion to pr$ent in oth€r ccffipreh€nsive i.corn€ subt.quent ch.ngej h th!
letrlalue. rreCompanymal6 ruch eleciioi on an instrument by- in3trumcnt b.sis. rh! .lassifi..tion it m.de on inirial rr.opition .nd is

rfthe CompanY decidet lo classit an eq'rity in5lrun€nt a5 at FVTOCI, then e[ tan v.be chant r on the i.rtrum€nt, crdodtnt divid€ndr,
ar. re(olniz.d in th. OCl. There is no ...yclin6 of the .moJnts from OCI to P&l- ev€. on rale of invertmenr. rtow€v€L rhc Co pany may
ransf?r the cu,hularve ta'n or losr within equo.

Equity inrtrument5 included wthin the FVIPL..retory ar€ m€aru.ed arf.n v.tu€ with attchanFs re(olnized in the p&L

lnteren in subridiarier, arrocrates and joint ventu re5 are accounted at cost.

a fnancial ast€t loi, wh€re appli.able, . p.n of. ffnancial asret or pan of a troup of similar ffn.n.ial alsets) ir p.imarit de..colnired (i.e
, emoved lrom th. compan/r bal.n(. rheet)when:

' The right5 to r€.€ive.arh iowi from rhe ass.t hav. expned, or
_ Ih. Company har traneferr.d its dthtr to rec€ive cash flows tiom rh€ as!€t or has arsumed an oblitation to pay the received cashflowr in

full without maleri.l del.Y to a thnd p.rty und€r a 'pass'throu6h' .ran&menr; and either (a) th€ Company h,, rensfered subst.nti.Iy .I
the ritkr..d rewards of the arset, or (b)the Company har neither transferred nor rlteined 5ubstantially atlthe ri5kr and rewards ot rhe asrer,
but has trantfered controlofthe asret.

t
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When the Comp.ny har tansferred itr rithts to receive carh flows from an asseto. has ent.r€d into a pass'throuth armnt.ment, it.valuitet
if and to what et.nt it har r€rained the irkr.nd revardt of own.Bhip. When it ha! h.ither transfcn.d nd r€t.ined subrtanti.llv .ll of th.
risks and rewardr of the .sret, nor tr.nsferrd conlrd of the .sset, th€ Company .ontinues to recolnit? th€ tr.ffl.rred .35et to $e €nenr ol
th. Compan/! continuin! involv€ment. ln that c.se, th. Company .lso r.to6ni!.s an arroo.t.d li.bllity. Tl1€ tranrf€rr.d a5ret and the
asso.i.tcd li.tility are me.sured or a basi5 that r€fl€cts the ritht5 and obli&tions thattheCoopany h.s ret in.d.

Continulnt involv.ment that takes lhe form of a tuarante€ over the lransferr€d arset as measured at th. lower of the ori8inal (arryint
amounr of th€ asset and th. manm!m amount ofconsideration that th€ Company (oold be requir.d ro repay.

lmp.lrrn nt oftln nci.l .5*ts
The Coopany.rsctscs on a forward lookint b.rir th€ oe€cted crcdit losses arso(iated with its asrcts c.rd.d .t amortir.d con .nd wOC|
debt instruments. fte impa;rment m"thoddog applied dependr on wh€ther th.re ha! b.€n a silnificant in<reire in c.edit risk. tiote 27

detailshowthe Company d.termin€r whether there has b.en a significant in.reas. an credit risk.

liiil rin nd.llhufit i
lniti.l n(otnitbn rnd mc.ssrement
Finan.ial liabiliti€r ar. clarsifi.d, at inita.l r€cognition, as ffnancial li.bilita€s at lair y.lu. throuth profit or lo.r,lo.nr.nd borrowinp, p.y.bl6,
or as d..ivariv6 d6ipat.d ar h€dgq instrum.nts an an eff€ctive hedle, as approp.iat..

All frnancial liabilitirs are re.otnired inltially at fair v.lue end, in th. cas. of lo.nfnd borrowings .nd p.y.bl6, net of dircctly .nributabl.

Ihe Compan/r fin.n.ial li.bilities inctud€ tr.de and othlr payables, loans and borrowinls indudin3 brnl ovErd..fu, fin.nci.l p.r.nte!
contr.rt5 and dcriv.liv€ fin.nci.l innru ment5.

ror trad! r€ceivabl€s only, the Company applies th€ rimplified approach permitted by lnd 15 109 Financi.l ln5lrum€nts, $hich r€quir6
€xpected lifetimc loss€s to be r€€ognked from intial re.otnitio.r of the r€.ei\..b|.r.

Subsaqlant rral{!r!|lr.nt
Ihe measurement of financial liabilitie' depends on their classification, ae describ€d below:

- Finrd.l li.bllhi.s.t hlr v.k through EEdtt o. h'rs
tinancial liablnie' hn v?tue throuo profit or lolr include fin.ncial liabiliti6 held for tr.din!.nd fiBncj.llahl ics d€sitn.t.d upor
initi.l recognilion .t .t fair valuc through proft or lorr. Financi.l liabilitier .re claslifi€d a5 hcld lor trading il th.y .r. incurr.d for th€
purpote of repur.haeint in th€ near te.m.Ihit <.tetory al5o include5 deriv.tive fi.ancial instrummts .nt.r.d into by the Corhpany th.t
are not d6ip.ted as h.lddry inst.umenB in hcdt€ r€l.tionrhips as defin.d by hd 45 109. s.p.rat€d rmb.dd.d d€riv.tive5 .re ako
clarsifi.d as heldfortradinr unl€sr they are derj$ated ar effectiv. hedtint inrtruments.

Gaint or lotter on liabilitie! held for tr.din6 are recotni5ed in th€ profit o.lo5e.

Financial liabiliti6 d.sitnated upon initial r..oEnition at fak valuc through proft o. los',re d.ritnat€d .r ruch .t the initial date ot
re.otnitio., .nd only if th€ (riteria in lnd AS 109 are ratirfied. For liabilities d€signat€d .s FVTPI fan !?lue g.ins/ loeses attribotable to
rh.nges in own credit.ist.re re(ognized in OCl. Ihee€ tains/ lo$ are not tubrequently lr.nslerr.d to P&1. How€ver, the Co.np..y may

tran5f€. the cumulatav€ &in or lose within equity. Alloths (hanter in fair value ofru.h li.bility ar. r€cognited in the statem€.1ol profit or
lorr. TheCompanyhas not desitnat.d any fnan.aal liability ar at fair value through proft and 1055.

- lo.ns.nd bonDwirEs
After initi.l reco$ition, interest-b€aring loanr and borowing! are subsequently measurcd at amo.tis?d cort u5int the EIR method. Gains

andlorser are re.opis€d in profit or lors whcn th€ liabilities ar. d.re.o$ir€d.s wellar through th€ €lRamonisation pro.ess.

Amortised cort i3 calculeted bytatint into.€corrrt any die.ount o. premium on a.quistion and fe.r or cotti that arc.n ioietr.l pan of
the ElR.lhe ErB amoniration is in.lud.d aq finrnc€ cottr in the etatcoent of profft and lors.

h
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t) Propcrty, plant .nd .quipm.nt
Freehotd tand is carried .r historical cost. Allorhe, itemt of property, plant .nd equipment.re rtated at hirtodral con 1e5r d€prednion. Historic.l

(on inctudes expendhure thar is dnedy .ttibutabl€ to rhe acquisitaon of th€ itemr. Cost may ako include tr.ntfe.t f.om €quity of any tains or

loster on qualifying (ash fow hedtei of fo.eitn curency purchates of Propenv, plant ind equipmenl.

subr.quent cost! are included inrh€ asset'r c.rrying.mount or rccotnis€d a5. repar.t€ ass€t, at apptop.i.lq only wh.n it itprobable tharfuture

e.onomic beneft5 .srociat€d with thr irem willflow to th. Comp.ny and the cott o, the iten can b€ mea3ur.d tlliably.lhe canYint amount of

any compon.nt accounred for .5 a r€parate.sser ir derero$is€d wh.n r.plac.d- All othd repairs ..d m.int.n.nc. ar. Gh.r6.d to profit or lo55

during lhe r€poning peraod in which lh€Y a.e incur€d.

Deprtd.tbo rl.tho$, .nh.ted u..tu| lk6 .rd rlddu.l r.lue
Dep.cciation is catcut.r€d usana thr rtraithtlin€ m.thod to allo(at! th€n cost, nEt of thar r.sidu.l v.lucr, ov.r then .ttmatld ulctul liv.5 adoPted

UsctulLiY€s

S.h€dule ll oI the Acl

Furnitu.e and Fixturer

Th€plopertY,pl.ntend.quipment.cqutedunderfnancelease'i'd.pre(iatedoverthe.sset,su'eful|ifeorov€'theshorlclofth€asset,'u'.ful
life;nd the t.as! telm ifther. is no r.aronable c.rtainry that the company willobl:in owndshiP at th..nd of th€ l.as' term

Th€uselulliveshaveb€end€terminedb.s€dootethnicale\r.lu.liondon€bY$em,natefienfs.xP.rtwlichar!hilh€rthanlho'€,Ped6edby
schedute I toth. compani€5 ad;2013, in ofder; r€fl.ct fi. actu.tusate ofrh. ast.t5. Th. residual valu.s .re not moreth.n 59a of lhe orit|nal

The assets, residuat vatucs and usetut tives are rev€wed, .nd .diusted if approp.iat., at th. €nd ol each r.po.tint period. An 
"s€r 

5 carryinl

amount i5 writt€n down imm€diatety to i$ recoverable amount iI the asset't c.rryint amount i5 g.ater than its estimated recov€rable amount'

Gainsandlo'sesondispogal'ar€determinedbycompar.n3p.oce.dswithCarryinsamount-The.e:reincludedinprofitorlos'withinother

- tln nci.l p.r.nr.e .odr..ls
Financial Ella.antee conrract! isrued by thc Co.npany .re th6e co.rtr.d5 th requir€ a payme.t to be mad€ to r.imbun. th. hold.r for a

loss it incurs b.(aus. thc sp€cifi.d d.btor hih to mal. a p.ym.nt wh.n du. in.(ordenc. wilh thc t€rmr ofr debt in5trum€nt. Fin..ci.l
lurrante€ co.rtr.ctr are recognir.d initi.lly .r . liability at hir value, .djurted fo. tranracrio. .ost5 rh.t .r€ dlrectly .ttdbutable to the
irru.nc. of the luar.nGr. Subrequ.ntly, th. li.bility is m.asured at th. hither o, $. .mount of lors .llowanc. dctermincd ,s pcr

irnpanmenr requnem€ntr of lnd A5 109 .nd th. amoont r.(olnis€d lers.umulatiw.monisatio.r.

O.rtcofnition
A financial liability is derecotni5ed *hen the oblig.tlon und€' the liibility i3 ditch.rted o. c.ft.ll€d or .xpn€s. Wh.n an enstnt frnan ial

liability is repla(ed by anoth€r from the 5am€ lender o.\ tubltanti.lly different t€rm3, or th€ t€rms of .n existry li.bilily ar. substantially
modified, ruch an .xchanEe or modifrcation is treated a5 the dererotnition ol the oritinal liability and th€ re€otnition of a n€w liabilitY. Ih.
difference in th€ re.peciive carryintamounts is recotnased in lh€ natementofprofl or lors.

(v) oflrlttkf, of fin nd.l keumlms
Financi.l .$.ts and lln.n.ial li.bilities ar€ of{s€l and the n.t .mount is report.d i. th! b.lan . sh.Gt if thlre it . cuneitv €ntorce.ble l.t2l
.ithr to oftsct th. r.cotnir.d amounts ..d there i5 .n inEntion to settle on a net ba5ir, to r..lh. th. arieB .nd seltle th.llrbilitie.
simuh.n!o0sly.

Ity) ied.rsnotton of fin ndrl.ss.tc
Th. Conp.ny dct€rmin.s classificatiod offinan€i.l a5tets and lirbilitier oo initial recotnitbn. Aft€. initial rkognitio.r, no r€.l.teiffc.tio.t it
mid. for finandal ass"ts which .re equity initrumenls .nd fn.ncial li.blliti!3. For ffn.nci.l .!sel! which .re d.bt Instrum.nti, a

reclassif..tion ir m.de only if th.re is a chanae in th€ buriness model for ft.na&ng thore as5.t!- ChanFs to the bulin6r model are oeected
to b. infrequent. ft€ Codpany'r senio. m.n.8em.nt d.termines ch.nf in lh. bulin sr model .r a reluh of €xt€rn.l or int.m.l rh.4.5
which are rilnifi(ant to th€ Companys op€r.tionr. Such chinles ar..vid.ot to enem.l prti.r. A chng. in lh. burineir rnodel o(curl rh€n
th. Comp.ny either b€tinr or cea5.r to pcrform .n act vity that ir sitniltcant to its op.ritiont. It th. Company r.dasrifies fin.ncial arr.tr, it
.ppli€s the re.lassification prospectlvet from the rcdassifi(ation dat. which is th. firrt d.y of th. imm.di.t.ly ne{ r.portln! p€riod

lollowint th. .hange in burinesr model. Th. Comp.ny dops not r.nat.any prlviously r.co$ir.d tains,lors.i (in.ludin3 impanm€nt t.ins or

losrer)or interen.
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ll) Hn nd.l .sr!r' lothe. rh.n ar f.lr v.kxl
Th. Cornprny arse$€r at e.ch d.l€ of 8al.nc. 5h.et wh.ther . financi.l .rr.t o. a troup of fin.nci.l .$.t' is impair.d. lnd AS 109 requlre5

epect.d .redh loss€r to b. m.rrur€d ihrord . lor5 allolfanc.. Th. Company reco$ir€3 liflti.h. expcct.d lotr6 fo. .ll contract .$ctj
.nd/or .ll trid. r.ceivabl6 th:t do not .onslitul. . financant rrinsa.tion. For .ll other fi.an€i.l arsets, .xp.ct!d c.edh lors.. .r. m.atur.d
at an amount equal to the 12 month exp€.ted credat losses or .t an amount equal to the lite tim. e)e€ded credit loss.s al th. (.dit rirl or
th. fn.ncial .se.t has in.r.ased signifc.ntly s]n.e aniti.l rc(opitlon.

liil on-fin nd.la3..ts
T.ltihl. .nd lnLndu. .ri.ls
Property, plant and equipment .nd int.n&blc .s5eB wlthin ffnite lif€ .rc lvaluatcd fror r.(ov.r.bility when€vlr th.r! ir.ny indlc.tion that
rheir carryint amounti may .ot b€ ..(ov6.ble. lt .ay iu(h indic.lion erirB, th. rEov.r.bl€ .mou.t (i.e. hid.r of rh! f.ir valu. l6s .o5t to
rcll and the vrlue-in-ure) is dctermincd on .n indMdual arsct barir unleJr tha .3rat doaa not lananta carh iows th.t .re l.rt.ly
independent ol tho6e from other arret5. ln ruch cas€s, thr recoverable amount ir d€tcrmined fo. rh€ ca3h tm€r.tint unat ICGU) ro which th€
arJct bclongs.

m) tmpfoYec b.n fiti
ll) Shodcrm oblllrdons

tiabilitiE for wat€s and r.lari.., includint noo-non.tary b€n€ffti th.t:r€ e&.ctcd to bc scttl.d qrlolly withln 12 monlfu .ft.r rh€ rnd of
the period in whi<h the enploye€r r€nder the rclaled rervi.e are recolnir.d in rcrpecl ot amployc€s' sarvicei up to tha and of tha reportln;
pcriod .nd .rc m.esu.cd it thc tmo{nts opcctd to b. prid wh.n th. li.bilitica .re ilrnrd. Ih. la.biliti.s .r. prc*nt.d :r cuncnt .nploy.e
b€nefft obligitio(ll in th€ balance 5h€rt.

(ii) od|c bnt.|€rm.mploFr b.n fir obr8.tions
Ihe li.biliti€5 for e.rn€d leeve .nd sicl le.v€ :re not exp.d€d to b€ r.ttlld wholly within 12 month .ft6 th€ md of thc p€riod in which the

employe€r render the r€l.ted service. Thq are lherefore measu r.d ar th. prerent vrluc ot erp.ct.d tulur. p.ym.nti to be m.dc in r.5pe(
of reNicer provid€d by emdoy.€s up to lh€ end of the repo.tint p€riod u3int the proieded unh cr€dil m€thod. The ben€fits ..e dircou.ted
usint th. market yieldr at the lnd ofthe reporri.rt p€.iod that havere.ms approtimatnt ro the tcrm5 o, th€ related obligarioo.

lfth€ rpcoverabl. amount of an arset (o. CGU) ir gtimated to be less than its carryint amount, th. carryint amount of the als€r (o. CGUIis

reduced to its r€.over.ble amount. An impairment lors is.e.otnired in th. n.tement of p.ofit and losr.

Ihe oblitationr are pres€nted ae <urent liabililier in the balan(e rheet ifthe entity does not have an uncondilional ritht to dete, settl.ment
lo. at least twelve monrhs after lhe reponing p€riod, retardl.sr of when $. actualsettl€m.nt ir.tp€ded too.cu..

liiil Pon-€mplorrn€nt ou[rtloh.
The company op.rat€s th€ followiB pon-cmployment schem e!
(a) defined ben.fit planr ru.h .i tratuity; and

lbl d.ltned conrribution planr ruch as prolideni tund.

- cr.ruity obli.tions
rhc liability o.:is€t r.cogni5ed in th. balanc. sheet in respect of d.f.cd beneft p€nsio.r and gatuity plans it the pr.ientvalue ofthc
defin€d ben€fft obltation.t th€ end ofthe reportiry period lers th€ lair ydlue ofplan asiers.Ih. d.lined b€n.-fi1 obliFtio. it cal(ulaled

an^uelly by acrurri.r oringthc proj.<ted unit credil method.

Thepr€sentvalue olth. defined benefit oblit.tion de.ominated in lNn ir detsmined by dilco{ntin6 the estimat dtuturec.sh ootffovt
by reference to market yields at thc end of the reponint p€riod on go'/ernme bonds that h.ve tein5 .pproxiih.tnS to th€ t€rmr of th€
relat.d oblitation. Th. ben.fits which are d.noman.ted in currency other than lN8, th..ash flows.r€ discoonted osint m.rl€tyieids
det€.min€d by .efe.ence to hi8h-quality corporate bondsthat aredenoninated inthecur€n.y in which rh€ b€n€fits u,illbe paid, andthar
have termt approxim.tiog to the terms of the related oblitation.

The net intpr€n con it calculated by.pplyrnt rhe dicount r.t€ to th. net b.l.n.e of th€ defin.d benett oblitation and the f.ir value ol
plan assets. This con ir includ€d in employce b€nefit.xpene€ in the rtatement of pronr and loss.

Remeasurement gain! and lotr.! arisintfrom .peri.nce adjurlmenlr and chant . in actuarial .s5umplisi ar. re(o8nit€d in lhe petiod

in which th€y occur, dnedly in other co.nprehensive in(ome.Ihey are includ€d in retained eahinBs in lhe 5t.tement ot chlnges in equity

and io th€ b.lanc€ rhe€t.

Chaflt€s in rhe preient valu€ of th€ deltned ben€nt obligarion r€sohin! from pl.n ahendmenB or curtailm€nts are re(ognjred

immrdiatelv in oront or los! ar Dast e.rvice cort.

t
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D.flned.onlrlbltlon phni
Ihe Compant p.y5 provident fvnd contributions to publicly rdminitrer€d prolident fu.ldr es p€r lo..l r€lul.tioir. Ihe Compedy hai no

tunh.r paymcnt oblitations on.. th. .o.!tnbutio.'r h.v. b..n p.id- $€ cootributio.s .rc accolrni.d for as d.fin.d &ntrihrtion pl.ns .nd
th. lontribution! a.e ..cotnised .s employ€e ben€fit €xp€nse when they :re du€. Prep.id conviburionr are recotnised as an rrsa to the
ext.nt that. caJh retund or a r.duction in th. tutu.. paym€nts ir .vailable.

n) rnd..nd othe, p.f.bles
Th.s. amounts repr...nt liabiliri.s fo. toods and 5€rucer p.ovidcd to th. Comp.ny prior to thc cnd of frnancial year which .r. unpeid. Trrdc .od
orher piy.blcr ar. presented as .urrent li.bilhie5 u.165 paymcnt i5 not du. within 12 months .ttcr thc reportint period. Tn€y .re r.@tnired
inirially .r th.ir faar v.lu. and subsequently measured at amorlised con urint the cff.ctivc intlr.n m.thod.

ol aonowiry costs

General.nd sperif( borrowin8 cost-r that ar. direclh .nribut. bl€ lo the..quisition, corstruction or p.odudion of a qualitintass€l are..pitaliscd
during the period of time th.t ir rcquir.d to cornplet€ and prep.re th. asr€t for it5 int?ndcd use or rale. Qualifyint asi.t5 .re $retr that
nerelsarily t.le a rubnantial p.riod oftimc to tet.eady for their intended use or tale.

3i INFOTECH BPO TIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2O2O

hv.rt nrnr in(ome .arncd oo thc tempo..ry investment oI rperific bo.ro*ingr pending th.k .$€nditur. on qualityin! asra! ir dedud.d from

the bonowing costs .litible for c.pitalisation. Other borrding (oit are.xpented in lh€ period in which th.y ar. incurr.d.

rf the effect of the tim. v..lu€ of money is material, provirions .re discounted usint a current pr6.tax rat thrt reiects, when appropriate, the risks

rpecific to the liability- When dirco{.tint it ured, the in.reas€ in lhe pronrion due to ihe pasrete of tide i5 re.otnited ar. fin.nce cost.

G!,!.r.1
Provirionr are recognired wh.n th. company has a present oblitation (letal o, constructive) a5 a r€rult of a past ercnt, it it probabl. thar an

outfow ot r.rolrrcEs .mbodyint €{onomi( b.nefits will b€ ,equir.d to 5?ttl. th€ obligation .nd a r€liabl. 6tim.r€ c.n b€ mad. ot the .mount of
the obli6.tion. when the Cqnp.ny expects som. or all of a provjeion to be r€imburr.d, for er.mpl., unde, an inrura.ce .o.tr.ct, th€
reimbu.semcnt ir r€cotnised ar a separat. atset, but only when the rcimbursem.nt is virlu.lly certain- Ih€ expens. relatiog to . provirion i5

prercnt€d in the ttrtement ot profit and loss net of anY .eimbrrreemenl.

q) continglrt lhbili|ics r.corrus.d ln . busltl.ss conbln tlon
A contintenr liability r€co8nis€d in . borine.r co.nbin.tion ir initially m.a3ured ai its fair valuG. Subsequcntt, it as measured .t dte hEhcr ot the

.mount that woold b. recoFGed in .ccord.nce with th. r.quirem.nts for provisio.rs .bovr o. th. amo{nt initi.lh r.co$i!.d l.sr, whm
appropriatg cumulative amonL. oo recognired in accordancr with lhe requireficnts for r€vrnua recognition.

rl coftrinut d.qult
Equiry shrrer are cl.rsified .r .quity. ln(r.mmtal costs dire.tly .ttrabutable ro th. irrue of ney rhar6 or optionr are 3hown in lquity as .
d€duction, nct of t.l, Aom th! proc.eds.

s) olvld.ndi
Provisior re rn.de hr thE amount of iny dividend d..lar€d, b.int appropriately authorir€d .nd no longe. at the diicr€tion ol th. €nttty, on or

b€for€ the €nd of the r€portin! p6iod but not distribut.d at th. md of th. r.portin! p€riod.

t) E.mlqs pcr sh.re

ll) B.rk..n ,t p.r rlEr!
Ba5ic..mintt p.r sh.re is c.lculat.d by dividin&

- the p.oft anributableto owners ofthe conpany
' by the weighr.d av€ra!. numb€r of €quiry shrrei oot'trndint dunnS the ffn.ncial ye.r, .djusied 16r boftr .l.'n.nB jn

equhy shrrcr irsueddurintthe y.ar a.d ercludint tr€arury rharee

$
I
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u) Currtnvnon cuI?lrlt d.$mc bn
Thc Company pr€r.nli arseB :nd li.bilities in the balanc. shc.i based on (urr.nv nollturrmt d:sri6cetion. An 3el ir tre.ted .r curent y,,h€n it

- Expecrcd to be rualiled o. inte.d€d to be 3old or co.r5um€d in norm.l op€ratn8 cy<l€
- Hdd pdtnarilytor th€ purpose oftrading
- Exp.ct€d to b. realired withan twdv€ hoorhr ,fter the reportinr pedod, o.
- Cash or c.rh equivalent unl6s r6tnd.d from bein! .xchanged or ur€d to 5€tle a liahlity for .t l€.st tw.lv. morths .ft.r th.

r€Do.tinS P.riod
Nl oth.r.rs€ts 3re cl.ssifiGd.s non-cuncnt.
A liabilily ir cu.r€nt when;

- lt ir .rp€d.d ro b. s.td.d in no.m.l op.r.tiflt cy.l.
- lt ir hlld prlmarilyfo. the purpos. of tradlnt
' lt it duc to b! slttl.d *ithin te.lv! months aft.r rh. r.portin! p.riod, ot
- Thcrc i5 no unconditional ritht to d.f€r dle r.ttl.rn.nt of the lirbility for at l.ast tw.lv. montht after the rlpo(in! period

(ll) olk r.d ..mln;s p.. sh.n
Oiluted e.rninSi p€r rhare adjurts th€ figurrs ur.d in lh€ determi.ation of b.ri( e.minp p€r !ha.c to tal. inro...olrnt:

- th. after incom. trx effcrt of int€rBt and oth.r financlng c6ts asiociat.d with dilutive potenti.l equity
- the wcithr.d av.r.t. numb.r o, additiorEl equity rh.r.s th.t would h.ve b..n ouGtandint a$umiry thc co.rv.rtioi ol

.ll dilutivc polcnlial equity 5h.re!.

Th! Company cl.seifi€s .ll oth6 liabilities ar non-currmt.

O.fen.d tzx .rr€$ .nd liabiliti.s are cl.srifi.d rr no6<urr.nt ass.t! .nd liabiliti.s.

Th€ op.ratin! cycl. is th. tjm. betwG€n th€ .cquirition of.r!€'t! tor pro.e.5int and thei. re.lis.no. in carh .nd c.rh lquiv.l.hts. Th. Comp.ny
has id€ntifild twelv€ months as its operatint cycl..

Yl crsh tlor statarl.lrl
Crgh Flowr a.e report€d u3int the indirect method, wndeby p.ofil befora t.x i5 adiurted lor thc affecls ot trans.ctlonr of a noGcerh nature, .ny
d€ferr.k o. accrualt of part or future operalin8 carh rer.ipt5 or paymentr and it.rn of incorne or rrp€ns.s atio.i.t d with lnv6tiry or financint
(ash flows. Th€ cash Sowt from operatin& inv€ning aod financiry activiti€r of the cornpany rr. t.&eg.l€d.

3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
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unlesr oih€rwl'e etated-

L
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wl loundlrt ot.nrounE
All amounts dirclo5.d in lhe finen.iel rtat.menti and notes h.v€ be€n rounded olt to th. near.st rupe€ as p€r th€ r.quir.m.nt of sd.dul. lll,



3. PROPERTY, PTANT AND EqUIPMENT

(Amount in INR)

Partia!lars Computer Hardwares Office Equipments Total
GROSS CARRYING VALUE

As at April 01, 2018

Additions
0isposals/Deletion

L27,q,6X2

36,74,O50
(13,74,263)

4,37,794

57,100

7P2,24,4n

37,31,150

173,74,2631

As at March 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals/Deletion

1,50,90,419

17,999

4,94,901

10,200

7,55,45,320

48,199

As at March 31,2020 1,51,28,418 5,05,101 1,56,33,519

ACCUMUTATEO DEPRECIATION/IMPAIRMENT

As at April 1, 2018

Depreciation for the year

Deductions\Adiu5tments during the period\deletion

t,lt,41,263
13,15,155

173,74,263)

3,91,098

18,910

1,15,32,361

13,34,065
(t3,74,264].

As at March 31,2019

Depreciation for the year

\ro,a2,157

15,05,318

4,10,00E

28,443

7,14,92,L65

15,33,761

As at March 3r., 2020 7,25,47,475 4,38,451 1,30,25,926

Net Carrying value ar at March 31, 2020 25,40,943 66,5s0 26,07,593
Net Carryint value A5 at Mar.h 31,2019 40,08,262 84,891 40,93,155

Particulars Right-To-Use Assets

GROSS CARRYING VALUE

As at April 01, 2018

Additions
Disposals

As at Ma.ch 31, 2019

Additions

Disposals

6,18,708

As at March 31, 2020 6,18,708

ACCUMUTATED DEPRECIATION/IMPAIRMENT

As at April 1, 2018

Depreciation for the year

As at Ma.ch 31, 2019

Depreciation for the year 4,61,866

Ar at Mar(h 31,2020 4,67,866
Net Carryint value as at March 31,2020 1,50,842

Net Carrying value As at March 31, 2019

c9 H

ae
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NOTES TQ FINWEE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31-,2O2O

14. FrNANcrAr AssErs

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019

OTHER FI'{At{CIAL ASSETS

Ngn Cur.ent
Loans to Related Parties

Financialassets carried at amgrtised cost

Security Deposits

Total

Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Secu.ity Deposits

Unbilled Revenue

lnterest Accrued but not due from Related parties

Less: Loss Allowances ( Security deposit)

Total

20,52,76,267

2,24,999

23,02,85,446

2,28,999

20,s4,45,260 23,05,14,885

79,4A,Or2

3,89,31,937

76,02,976
(19,48,012)

38,58,012

3,65,94,7 49

t6,56,765
(2s,69,012)

4,05,40,913 3,9s,40,514

(Amount in INR)

(Amount in INR)

5. INCOME TAX

\

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

4,75,O0O

87,01,000

4,33,000

1,02,19,108

91,75,000 1,06,52,108

Deferred tax relates to the followint:
Fixed Assets

Expenses allowable on payment basis

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

17 ol 41
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Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets (Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Opening balance as of April I
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI

Closing balance as at March 31

7,06,52,708

19,17 ,077)
(s,s9,091)

1,43,41,,000
(39,s7,000)

2,68,108

91,76,000 1,06,52,108

Maior Components of income tax expense tor the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as follows:

i. lncome tax recognised in profit or loss

Particulars 20t9-20 2018-19

Current income tax charge

Adiustment in respect of current income tax of previous year

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
lncome tax expense recognised in profit or loss

9,17,OL1

36,06,000

38,01,268

39,57,000

41,7 4,t55 1,7?,54,268

ii. lncome tax recognised in OCI

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

lncome tax expense recognised in OCI

(s,s9,091) 2,68,108
(s,59,091) 2,68,108

iii. Amounts recognised directly in equity
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in

profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/(credited) to equity

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Profit before tax as per IND AS

Enacted tax rate in lndia

lncome tax on accounting profits

Change in Tax Rate

other Adjustment

Adiustment in respect of current income tax of previous year

Tax at effective income tax rate

2,O3,22,t28
25.77%

51,t4,671

3,32,305
(1,01,961)

(r.1,70,862)

2,O4,06,,45

26.O0%

53,0s,s98

22,74,L47
(16,74s)

38,01,268

4t,74,1s5 L,13,64,257

Changes in tax rate
Where the applicable tax rate changed during the year, the adjustments to the deferred tax balances appear as another reconciling

item in the reconciliation of accounting profit multiplied by tax rate to income tax expense. The associated explanations could be

along the following lines:

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2020 and fiscal 2079 was 25.77% and 26%, respectively. Effective tax rate is generally influenced by

various factors, including differential tax rates, nondeductible expenses, exempt non-operating income, tax reversals and provisions,

and other tax deductions.

The impact of the change in tax rate has been recognised in tax expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
previously recognised outside profit or loss.

q

)
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5. OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in INR)

Paniculars March 31, 2020 March 31.,2019

Non Current
Others

- Payment ofTaxes (Net of Provisions)

Total

Current
Advances other than Capital advances

- Advances to creditors
- Other Advances

Others
- Prepaid expenses
- Balances with statutory, Government Authorities

Total

13,19,55,082 70 ,45 ,-7 3 ,OO7

13,19,65,082 70,45,73,OO7

70,94,354

7,37,t60

0

7,73,47,055

5,62,307

t,70,544

3,62,260
2,02,67,7L9

1,85,72,589 2,74,62,230

lz. rnaor necrrvastrs

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Current

Trade Receivables from customers

Receivables from other related panies

Total
Breakup of Security details

Unsecured, considered good

Credit lmpaired

lmpairment Allowance (allowance tor bad and doubtfuldebts)
Unsecured, considered good

Credit lmpaired

Total

4,71,92,264
6,47,596

4,44,04,664

8,40,61.7

4,80,39,961 qs2,4s,2at

4,80,39,951

41,55,094

4,52,45,281
42,O3,O16

5,22,05,O54

41,65,094

4,94,48,157

42,03,O76

41,65,094

4,80,39,951 4,52,45,287

(Amount in INR)

42,03,076

18. cAsH AND cAsH EeurvaLENTs

(Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Balances with bank:
- On current accounts

Total
2,25,33,210 2,25,66,504

2,25,33,270 2,25,65,sO4

$
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9. SHARE CAPITAL

i. Authorised Share Capital (Amount in INR)

Particulars
Equity share

Number Amount
At April 01, 2018

lncrease/(decrease) during the year

At March 31, 2019

lncrease/(decrease) during the year
At March 31, 2020

1,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,000 10,00,000

ii. lssued, subscribed and aid u ca (Amount in INR)

Particulars Amount

1,00,000

1,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

1,0o,ooo

Equity shares of l R 10 each issued, subscdbed and fully paid

At April 01, 2018

lssued during the period

At March 31,2019
lssued during the period

At March 31, 2020 10,00,000

Particulars At March 31,
2020

At March 31,
2019

3i lnfotech Limited (The Holding company) and by its nominees

Equity shares 1,00,000 1,00,000

iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

At March 31, 2020
Name of the shareholder

Number % holding Number % holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid

3i lnfotech Limited (The Holding company) and by its nominees 1,00,000 1,OO% 1,00,000

oPB

I

L
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Itc
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Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in lndian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is

subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

ln the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

iii. Shares held by holdin&/ ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates

out of equity issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/
associates are as below:

1,00,000

10,00,000

Number

$

At March 31,2019

700%



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2020

10. OTHER EQUITY

i. Reserves and surplus (Amount in INR)

Particulars March 3L 2020 March 31, 2019

Total

50,7 4,15,752

17,60,24,423)

50,74,7s,7s2

(9,38,16,669)

43,74,50,729 41,36,58,483

(a) securities Premium Reserve (Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
opening balance

Add/(Less):

closing balance

50,7 4 ,75.152

50,7 4,7 5,L52 50,74,75,152

(b) Retained Earnings (Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Opening balance

Net Profit/(Loss) for the period

Add/(Less):

Items of Other Comprehensive lncome directly recognised in Retained Earnings

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net oftax

closing balance

(9,38,16,669)

1,61,47,974

(18,072)

76,62,344

(10,20,9s,470)

90,41,878

(7,63,077l,

l7,60,24,4231 (9,38,16,669)

oBP

t
a1

t$
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Retained Earnings

50,7 4,15,7s2



NOTES TO FINANCI AL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2O2O

ntinl

72,94,268 87,73,453

72,94,268 87,L3,453

5,38,810

3,88,228
L2,4L,574

7 ,78,150
9,27,O3A 20,59,724

Non Current
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity

Current

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity
Leave encashment

Total

Total

$\P,,\

3iINFOTECH BPO LIMITED

11. PROVTSTONS

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019Particulars
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3L,2O2O

12. TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current
Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises ( Note No.32)

Trade Payables to Related Parties

Trade Payables to Others

Total

9,57,952
7,19,57,950

74,48,467

12,81,056

1,,t9 ,57 ,950
2,27,L9,O40

2,O3,64,369 3,59,58,O45

13. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABIIITIES

(Amount in lNRl
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Dues to employees

Total
67,68,061 94,94,643

67,6a,O6L 94,94,643

14. OTHER TIABITITIES

(Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Current
Advance received from Customers

Advance received from Related parties

Others

Statutory Liabilities

Others

Total

73,86,273

70,87,66L

54,06,919

31,83,365

79,44,696

70,47,667

55,46,923

31,84,05s

I,1o,64,2L8 1,17,63,335

1, i

l'

!Lz ,
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3i INFOTECH BPO TI MITED
TO FI NANCrAt TEME NTS FOR THE EAR ENDED RCH 31, 2020Y

(Amount in tNR)

(Amount in iNn)

(Amount in lNR)

Amount in INR

IAnrouni in rilR)

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19

36,502

57,249 70,582

;l'"::'#*T ::::e 
uabirities (rndAs 1 1 6)

Total

Others

19. FINANCE cosr

Particulars

2019-20 2018-19

18,22,46.2s4 16,24,80,476

Cost of thlrd p.rty p.oducts / outiourced servJ(es

Service delivery to clients

Total

18. cosT OF THIRD PARTY
D SERVICES

Paniculars

2019-20 2018-19

22,67,43,350

2,53,55,385

9,23,015

24,24,O99

7,72,507

21,53,60,307

2,t7,58,983

34,36,690

20,94,593

1,28,644

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident ind other fund(
Staff welfare expenses
Gratuity Expense
Recruitment and trainint expenses

Total 25,
79 317

71 EMPTOYEE BENEFITS IXP€NSE

PaniculaIs

2019-20 2018-19

1.142

1,94,34,715

30,01,280

51,500

2,33,06,660

20,46,540

Interelt income on
[oans to related panies
Others

Other on Operatint lncome
Miscel,aneous lncome

(lVet of expenses directly attibuta bl€ to such income)

Total 37 u,700

Particula6

2019-20 2018-19

48,97,94.935 4s,44,63,112
Total

Revenue from Opera on
Transaction iervice

97 ,935 11245
16. OTHER It{coME
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20. OEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATIO'{ EXPENSE

nt in INR)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

15,33,751

4,67,865

13,34,065

20,or,627

Depreciation on tangible assets

Depreciation on riSht to use assets

Tot.l 13,34,065

21. OTHER O(PENSES

{Amount in INR)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Total

Electric power, tueland water
lnsurance

Letal and protessional fees

Rates and taxes

Rent

Hire Chartes

Repairs and maintenance - others
Telephone and internet expenses

Travelling & conveyance expenses

Allowance for doubtfuldebts and advances

Forei8n exchante fluctuation loss

Miscellaneou5 expen5es

4,32,173

11,49,853

4,2L,73,992

22,183

'73,42,2841
28,40,215

76,647

27,60,40L

13,07,226
(37,983)

31,918

25,35,631

4,s0,626

11,53,635

2,25,71,037

1,84,028

r,6E,3E,703

74,33,803

20,622

12,53,048

8,47,234

1,47 345
34,434

L8,62,273

s.19,49,921 5,27,97,227

(a) Details oI Paymenr to auditoE (Amoont in INR)

Particularr 2019-20 2018-19

fotal

25,000

25,000

4,00,000

1,00,000

10,872
5,50,000 5,10,872

(b) Corporat. so.ial 16ponsibllity eryenditure

As per Section 135 ofthe Companies Act 2013, the Company does not meet the applicability threshold . Hence the provision ofthe
said section are not applicable during the current financialyear.

(cl Earnings in foreitn aurrency (Amount in lltlR)

2018-19

lncome from Operations

Total

13,37,191

13,37,397

oPBc

7-

t
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NOTES TO FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2O2O

2019-20

4,00,000

1,00,000

As auditor
Audit Fee

Tax audit fee

ln oth.r.apa.ity
other rervices (certifiaation fees)

Re-imbursement of expenSe5



3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

(Amount in

1,6L,41,914

L,61,41,974

Lm,000

151.t8

151.44

90,41,878

90,41,878

1,m,@

90.42

90.42

(c) R.con.ilhtlons of G.mlnSs utrd in cakuLtint Gamintt p.r rh.r.
Bosic eonings pea shoft

Profit attributable tothe equity holders ofthe company used an calcrrlating baiic eamings p€r share

Diluted eornings pet shote
Profil attributable tothe equity holders ofthe company uied in calculating diluted earnings per share

(dl Weighted .vcrage hunb€r or shaies uscd as thc denomln.tor
WeiShted avereSe number ofeqrrity shares used as the denominatorin calculating basic earnings per share

Adjustments forcalculation of diluted earnings per sha.e:

Options
Convertible Bonds

Convertible Preference shares

Welthted aver.ge nutnber of equity th.r6 us.d .r the denomln.tor an calculatlng dilut.d ..min8s per ih.r.

(a) Aasic eamirgr perrhare

(bl Dlluted earnin$ per share

1,00,000 1,00.000

c
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EMPLOYEI BTNEFIT

2019

Ior.l EmgloYlc 8.n.ir onll..d'on

3,84,228

5,34,410 72,94,264
a,8.z2a

,a,]a,o7a
1,7A,tsO

12,81.574 87,13,453

7,78,150

99,95,077

9,27,034 72,91,26t 82,21,106 20,99,r71 Er,1r,453 1Or,tr,lrl

O L.rvr O![!rd,ons
'Ih. 1..v. oblts.iid5 covd th. tomp.ny! ll.oilit rq ,ct and .a...d 1..v..
Th..rcunl of th! ,rovjiion ol INR !8a,228 {M.rd 31, 2019: llti 778,150) ir pr6.nt.d (urr.nt, 3im! in. co.nr.ny 1106 not h.v...
ln.onditi6.l riSht to d.f.r r.ttl.mst for ..y ot th6. obliS.tiqr.

{Il Fo* Eftploy.m.rir olllta$oor

Th. .omp..y provid.t for Sr.tuity fd .nploy.6 in irdi. .r p.r th. P.ym.nt o{ Gr.luity A.t, 1972- Emrloy.6 wio .r. in conti.u@r idic. lq
. p.riod ot fry. y..r! ... .ligibl. for lr.tuitv. ]h. .mount of gr.tuity p.y.bl. @ r.tn.D..V t.rhin.nn L th. .mploy.a hn dr.s b.ti<
el.ry ,.r trMth .ohpur.d proponad.t.ly for 15 d.y! el.ry hultipla.d bt .unbd of y...e of 3.ryt. opto 10 y..B .nd 26 d.y5 rl..y
moltipli.d by nomb., of y..rr of e.Nr. b.yond rry66.

Th. .moonl ..cotnir.d i. th. brl.n(.5het and $€ mov.D.nl an thc nd d.incd b.n.fil oblla.don ov.r th. pdiod rr..! tolldt

17,OO,209 ,,,@,209

rnt..ert.ry.nr./li.cm.)
rod ariq[t r..oarb.d h p.oft d bit

lc.in)/tos lrm d.na. h dmotr.phk.s3umptions
lc.in)/tos from .h.na. ih nn.nca.l s3umptions
Exp.n.nc. (r.inr)/16..i

Torzl .lr|o.ht r.cotnbcd h otncr (ofiF.lrcllrt . hco.n!

15,02,198

5.92.495
15,02.198

s,92.495
9r,94,902

{1,10,769}
5,53,718
5,88,236

91,94,902

{1,10,759)
5,5r,7tA
5,44,236

r0,31,r85
(8,11,060)

10,31,1t5

t6,31,060)
!19,95,O21

77,a2,919
6,91,120

90,95,027

17,42,919
6,91,120

1,24,19,126

{28,14,733)
i.12,757!.

5,06,054

1,24,19,126

121,14,733)

l'17,7571

6,06,09

(22,2r,436)
(2r,64,5r1)

122,21.L5l
t23,64,613)

l6.3a.orl ,a,a3,0rt

Ar .t l9x.h 31" 2019

htrr.5t .tp.nsd{incom.)
Tol:l -rrost r.cotrb.d h D.ofit o. 1o3!

lc.in)/Lo.r rro.n ch.n3c in doos,.rhk .sumpti(h3
{G.in)/Lor3 iiom ch.ns. in nn.n.i.l .jlJhelion'
Exp.n.E. l8.int)/l6r.s

Iot l.mdnt rRotnisld In othlr (oopr.hdrlv. i.tm!

dis.lo.ed rbove relater io untund.d
M.r.h31,2020 M.(h11,20t9

Pr.t.nt v.lu. ol obn8atront
F.t valu. of pl.n alr.ti
O.ff cit of unfun.l.rl E .tvity pl.n

78,33,078 99,95,027

74,!r,O7A 99.95,021

,J

t
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Th. antuity pl.n ir. unfunded pl.. .nd th. comp.ny m.l6 .ontributids to rrog.ie.d tu.d5 in lndi.. Th. romp.ny do8 not tulh fund th!
liebrlity and tuint.inr t t.rg.t la.loftu.din8to b. m.intainld d., a p.rin ottim. b.s.d on 6tim.tb of.rrkt.d ar.tuitv p.ym.ntr,

l



3i INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAI. STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2O2O

M..dr 312019

€Iprtld r.toh 6 p1...!s.ir

For fi.n 3 y.,3

5y..rr.nd.bow

5.60%

1.OO9.

I OO14

75.00n
4.00,r(

1oot(

6.90%

3.00%

2.00*

50.@*
10.00x

100%

crrh iowt over the n.n

M..dr 3r" 2020
lmp.d on d.fi..d b.n.lil oblag.tio.

M..ci 3r" 2019
lmp..t on d.fin.d b.n.ft ob[8aiion

14,45,124

0 20%

1,@,@,91s
0.10%

78,20,680

4.20%

99,8t,124

Th. r.n silivity . n.ly3is . bov. h.v. b..n d.l.rmin.d b.5ed on. m.thod th.tenr.pol.t.s ti. imp.ct d d.li..d benfit oblig.tioo .r a retultof
...5on.b1. ct.n86 in t.y.trumption3 dcurinl.t rh. e.d ot th..cportina !.riod.

sin ! ih! *h.n. i3 m...a.d o. unfund.d barit th. n.rt y....@tnbu$o. B.il.
Th..v...8. dur.tion ol th. d.fn.d b6.tt plen oblia.tion.t th..nd of in. r.ro.tiq pain i! l0 y..R (M...h 31, 2019:6y..rt)

b, D.ffn.d p6rkm bcr.ffB
Dircl6ur.s w@ld b. em..rgivln fd G,.tuity

\

M.r.h lr" 2020
lnr.<t o. d.lin.d b.nefn obh.tion

M.rat 31" 2ol9
lDp.d o. d.rin.d b6.ft ouiti.lton

'70,40,946

10.10*

93,70,055

6 30%

87,81,234

12.!or(

r,07,@,517
7.to*

E8,t8,05a
12.60t6

1,07,26,103

7.ao*

,0,00,t03
-t0 50t(

9!,38,135
.4.@*

42,21,912

9.Oota

L@,)2,226
0 8o%

74,67,14O

4.tox

9!.72,O59
-6.ZOX

M.r.h 11,2020 M.,.h 11,2019

5,3t,810

21,64,408

23,02,442
1,01,84,460

t2,a\,574
42,93,186

37,90,835

50,94,44!
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Il) o.tln d.ont lluilm pLnt
Ih. .mp.ny .Lo h.e d.tn.d cntibution ,1..i. Conbibutionr .r. n.d. to pr@id.ni flnd in lndi.l& .mploy..t .! th. r.t. of 12X of b.tt
sl.ry .3 p.r ,.aul.tid3. Ihe .ontributiont .r. r!ad. to r.8irt.r.d provid.nl fund .dhiniit r.d by th. ld.hm.nt. lh. oblit.tid ol th.
comp..y ii limit.d toth..moont contribut.d.nd it h.5 no fu rther .onv..tuil nor .ny conElctiv. oblig.tion, fh..xp.nre r6og.iid du,ing

th. p.riod tow.rdt .l.fn.d coni.ibotio pl.n is lNn 18,515,451 (M.rch 31, 2019: l n 12,621,080)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3L,2O2O

in INR)

i. Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt

(a) Disputed ESIC matter (including interest upto the date of demand)

(b) Disputed lncome Tax matter (including interest upto the date of demand)

ii. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

(a) Corporate Guarantee(Secured with first charge on all present and future movable

assets (except current assets) and second charge on current assets of the Company has

been created in favour of CDR lenders of holding company as per Master Restructuring

Agreement(MRA) entered by the holding company with its CDR lenders.)

5,47 ,402

73,65,577

Not ascertainable

5,47,402

73,65,577

Not ascertainable

//a:..

q
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingent Liabilities March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

k
|\



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020

Nature of
Relationshi

Name of Related Party

3i lnfotech Limited

3i lnfotech Holdings Private Limited

3i lnfotech (Africa) Limited

3i lnfotech (Middle East) FZ LtC

3i lnfotech (Thailand) Limited

3i lnfotech (UK) Limited

3i lnfotech (Western Europe) Group Limited

3i lnfotech (western Europe) Holdings Limited

Rhyme Systems l-imited

3i lnfotech Asia Pacific Pte Limited

3i lnfotech lnc

3i lnfotech SaudiArabia LLC

3i lnfotech SDN BHD

3i lnfotech (Cyprus) Limited (formerly known as Black-Barret Holdings Limited)
3i lnfotech Services sDN BHD

Elegon lnfotech Limited

3i lnfotech (South Africa) (Pty) timited
Locuz lnc. (ceased to be subsidiary from November 1, 2019)
Professional Access Software Development Private Limited
3i lnfotech Consultancy Services Limited

Locuz Enterprise Solutions Limited (Ceased to be subsidiary from November 1, 2019)
IFRS Cloud Solutions Limited (stuck off on November 28, 2019)
3i lnfotech Software Solutions LLC

3i lnfotech (Canada) lnc
3i lnfotech Nigeria Limited

3i lnfotech Netherland B.V.

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow 5ubsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

lndia

Mauritius
Kenya

UAE

Thailand

UK

UK

UK

UK

Singapore

U5A

KSA

Malaysia

Cyprus

Malaysia

China

RSA

USA

lndia

lndia

lndia

lndia

Dubai

Canada

Nigeria

Netherland

Key Ma al Personnal (KMP) : ton
Mr. Padmanabhan lyer
Ms. Sreerupa Sengupta (appointed on October 26,2018)

Director
Director

Oirectoray Kumar

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) list of related parties as per the requirements of lnd-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

1r8

c
Erlq ,'\ ).
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3i INFOTE H BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I,2O2O

(ii) Transadions with related parties

The followinS transactions occurred with related rties in lN
Name l{ature of Relationship Nature of Transaction March 31, 2020 Ma.ch 3r., 2019

lncome 89,,14,158 9S,20,808
Expenses (Corp charge out) 15,15,13,683 14 ,47 ,47 ,541
Expense5 - lnfrastructure 1,55,00,000 1,55,00,000
lnterest income on advance given 1,94,34,7L5 2,33,05,660

3ilnrotech Limited Holding Company

Advance Siven 2,24,73,88r 5,19,39,841

3i lnfoteah Consultancy Sewicei Limited Fellow Subsidiary Advance rcpaid 21,95,'t43 26.44,620
3i lnfotech lnc l-imited Fellow Subsidiary lncome 13,65,7@

Advance Repaid 4,24,072
3i lnfotech (Middle East) FZ l-Lc Fellow Subsidiary Advance Repaid 15,59,583

{iii Outstand balances arisinS from sal€s/purchaier of toods and seryices

Nature of Relationship Mar.h 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

3ilnforerh timit.d HoldinB Company

16,O2,976 t6,s6,755lnterest receivable

Loan 14,97,39,664 17,26,13,546

3i lnfotech Consultan.y Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Advance receivable 5,54,76,597 5,76,12,340
Trade payables 1,19,57,950 1,19,57,950

(AInount in IRR)

Name Natur! of Relation5hip MarEh 31, 2020 Mar.h 31, 2019

3l hfote(h S.udi Arabia tlc
Trade receivable

Advance hom Customer

F€llow subsidiary

6,47,696 6.79,514

10,87,551 to,87,661

(iv) l-oanr to related

\

in INR)

l{atu.e of Relationship Particulars Mar.h 31,2020 March 31,2019

loans to/lnterest re.eivable from related panies

Loan at the beginning olthe year 67,00,000
Loans advanced

Loan adju5ted against payables 57,00,000
Loan at th€ end o, the year

lnterest al the beginning of the year 3,87,55,286
lnterest charged

lnterest receivables adju5ted against
payables

3,87,55,286

3i lnfote€h Umited Holdine Company

lnterest rece,vable at the end ofthe
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NOTES TO FINANqAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2O2O

25. TAN VATUT MEA5URTMTNTS

fltll^rl<t t Aslf'lt

C.3h.n<l C..h Equi[l.nr!
Otlri llEEi.l Ats.tt

430,19,96r
2,25,43,zto

2a,59,U,t73

a,51a5,2a1

2,25,6,504
27,@,55,394

4,&,39,55'
2,7s,43,270

21.s9.4,t74

r1,65,5u4/r ata,1a.o,ta, ,1,65,5934,3 3f,,7t,6-r,113

l. rln.n.bl hnrum.nt

Atnts.nd llabilartB h..3ur.d.t l.L vd* - f.n €tu. m..sunE.nrr

flt{aioat ua]t ttct

Oth.r nrrcbl lLblllll.t
1..- Lrbilitar (rNO A5u6)

2,03,54,359

67,64,061

r.62.16

3,59.58,045 2pa,s,s9
67,58,061

1,62,755

3,59,54,046

2,12,95,Ltfi 4,5rt,52,619 2,17,95J* {54,52,6!9

Th. m.h.a.rcrt ..gad th.l th. hlr EIE of olh .nd orh .quinbnr, tr.d. @iv.U.!, n d. p.r.bt r, .,ril oth.r .w.m nd*ij .*tt . d
li.brlitl.r .pp.ql rt. th.n orryi,t .mu^i, r..tch de to $. thoa t .n Ntu.iti.! ot tn { lGti\ffnt9

Th. f.t hlq lq lo.nr Guity d.r.r't .d icnmit In F.Lc@ .h.G c. c.kd.nd b.nd 6 orh n ,i .fijourt d u.irt . o,@t
l..dint Et.. Th.y .r. .|.$ln.d r l@l 3 hk Elet ln th. t.ir Elo. hl.or.lry dc. to th. iElullm ol umh*Mbl. lnplt' lncludl,ra cost..r.ty

Th. r.k rlatot dn.uri..t bordln.J.r. b.!d ondlr.ou .d osh fl*5 Elna ..ur.nt bordha r.t . Ti.y.r. .l.'ali.d .t l.El 3 t n
Elrc3 in th. liir El€ hi.Erchy du ro th. w ot unobs.MbL inputs, tftludilt orn (.dit nrl

Thit actlon .,pl.iB th. juda.6c.ns .6d .nh.tEr n.d. rn d.t rhininath. t t Elwi oI rh. tinrrr.l inn.lh.nB that ... reoani.cd..d d..r!r..t l.tv.lc.
To provid. .n a.di.!tio. .boul th. r.li.bility ol th. i.put! ur.d in d.r..mnE f.i. v.14, tlE .oB9..y h.t .l.rifEd lt fidri.l itut@.lt rnto rhre l*lr
p..3.rib.d u.d.r tlE .c.d.ti.t st nd.rd. A. .rp!.n.tior of...i l.El lollovr !nd.r@.th rlE t.bl. I

F.i. r.lue D!.u. .nl ltina F.lr Ei. mr6u,m6t utn.

ll'.ld rl |r.d i]
lLrvd 1l

(ldl rl

lot l Frn.ndC U.Uthh3

20,5416,261

2,24,999

20.52,16,25r

2.23,!XB
8,02,45,445

7,24,999

23,02.35,346

2,2A.99

70,51,45,264 20,54,45,250 23,05,r4,Ars 23,05,14,885

L.ElI.l. Elt ha.r.rhy iEld€ q@r.d luEdjurtcd) pn.B h.criE h.rk tl lor id..tk.t.rr.E o, ti.Ulttj.,.
L.r,.l 2 - nE t i. rrs of fiHml.l innrututu th:i .r. Dr tdd.d in .n .<tiE h.rtlr (for .rhpb, to.l,.d bo.6, 4r tn co!,*.. d.riEriErl tt d.t hiEd orin!
nruttion t .hniqE3 whlch m.imi.. !t. ol obs.Mbl. h.rLt rl.t. .nd ..ly I lrttl. .t po$ibl. o. .nrit\.rr.citi. ..dmr.t. lr .lt 3lanin..nr inpurs r.quJr.d to t rEle..l.*um..r... obeMbl., rtt in*lll@it 

'r 
irtud.d i^ t4t 2.

Lr,.l , - rl oE or mor. ot th. tlanitlc.nr inr(t! .r. nor b.r.d on obrry.bL m..l.r d.r., dE i.nrlm.nt i. ictod.d tn L€l ,. ThB k rh. ..* to, !.tii!d aqoity
sh...3, ..mi,t.nt @Bld.r.rbn .nd |rd.n^i6..rion .j&t ifttud.d a^ tc€t 3.

Il. V.lu.don dniqr okr, to d.t.miE hl, ela
sp.cific vrlBt66 rkh.iqej o3.d to EtE 6Mea.t iBtrud.ntr iElad!;
- th. u* olqsr.d ro.lct prk.t ord..t.rqet., tor eimil.. inrtrum^t
- th. trt vd4 olth. r.h.i.i4 fiEfta.t ituEum..r, it d.t.,6i*d qin, di*ounr.d..$ fl .narFr,

rt.( h.w h.6 @ rr.rt R .no.a tcl t, tel 2 .nd kv.t I dorht rt. p.nod
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27- FINANCIAT RISX MAiIAGEMEMT

The Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign curenay exchange rates,credit,liquidity and interest rate ris(which may
adversely impact the tair value of its financial instruments. The Company has a isk manaSement po,icy whiah covers risks associated
with the tinan.ial assets and liabilities . The risl manaSement policy is approved by goard of Oiredo.s. The focus oftha risk mana8ement

committee is to a5sess the unpredictability of the financial environment and to mitigate potentiel adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company.

i. M.rket Rlsk

Market risl is the risl that the fair value or the luture cash flows of a financial instrument willfluctuate because of the change in market
prices . Such ahanges in the value of financial instruments may resuh from changes in the foreign currency exchan8e, interest Gtet
,c.edit ,liquidity and other market changes. The Company's exposure to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency exchange
rate risk.

(a) Forcign cu.r.nq cxchanSe ratc risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate may have potential impad on the statement of profit and lo5s and the othe.
comprehensive income and equity,where any transactaon referen(e more than one curency orwhere as5et5/liabilities are denominated
in a curency otherthan the functionalcurrency of the Company.

ConsiderinS the countries and the economic envkonment in which the Company operates, it5 operations are rublect to risl arising from
fluctuation5 in exahange rates in those countries. The riskr primarily relates to fluctuations in lr5 Oollar, Great gritain pound and Euro

against the functiona I currenc] of the Company.

The Company , as per its current risk management policy,does not use any derivatives instruments to hedge ,o.eign exchan8e . Further

,any movement in the functional aurrency of the various operations ot the Company eSainst malor foreign currencie5 may impact the
Company's revenue in international businets.

The Company evaluates the impact of the forei8n exchange rate fluctuation by assessing its exposure to exchanSe rate ri5k5. Apart from
exposures of fo.eign currency payables and receivables, which panially are naturally hedSed atainst each other, the Company does not
use any hed8ins instrumentsto hedge itsforeiSn cur.ency exposures; in line with the current risk manaSement polaciar.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aSgre8ation of the net toreign exchanSe rate exposure and a samultaneou5 parallel

tor€i8n exchange rale shift of all the currencies by 1% against the functional currency ofthe Company.

The followinS analysis has been worked out based on the net exposures oI the Company as of the date of Ealance Sheet which could
atfect the atatement of profat and loss and the other com prehensive income and equity.

The following table set forth information relating to foreiSn currency exposure as at March 31,2020

(Amount in INR )

Paniculars USD G8P EUR Total
Total tinancialagsets 6,47,696 6,47,696
Total f inancial tiabilities 10,87,661 10,87,661

1% appreciation/depreciation of the respeclive foreiSn currencies with respect to functional cunency of the Company would result in
decreare /increase in the Company's profit before tax by approximately tNR 4,399.64 for the yearended March 31,2020

The followinBtable sets fonh information relating totoreign cu rrency erposure as at March 31,2019:

unt in INR

1% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreiSn currencies with respect to functional currencf of the company would resuh in
decrease /increase in the company's profit before tax by approximatery rNR 4,080.46torthe year ended March 31.2019

C]|

\o

d

TotalParticulars 6BPUSD IUR
Totalfinancial.s!€ts 6,79.514 79,614

10,87,651Total financial Liabiliti€s 6511
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(bllnterest rate.isk

The Company's fixed rate borrowinSs are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subled to interest rate risl a5 defined in lnd
AS 107, since neither the .arryinB amount northe future cash flows willfluctuate becaus€ ofa chanSe in market.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risl is the risk that the counterpany will not meet itt obliSations leadin8 to a finan.ial lors. Credit ri5k arises from cash and cash

equivalents, inveslments carried at amortised cost and deposits with bankr and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers including outstanding receivables and unbilled revenues.

(1) Credll rirk m.natcmeot
. Tr.de .€ceivabl$ .nd unbllled revenug
The credit ri5k has always been managed by the g.oup through an ass€ssment oI the companies financials, market intelligence and
cuslomers credibility.
The Company maket provisions for Debtors and Unbilled based on a crtical assessment of the amount in relation to the.geinS
combined with the historicaltrend observed in the respective geography, the past history of the client aod comparison tvith similar
projects to determine the recoverability ofthe receivables.

- Oth€. Financial Assets

The company considers the probability of default upon initial recoSnition of asset and whether there has been a siSnmcant increase in
credit risk on an on8oing basis throughout each reporting period. To asses5 whether there is a si8nificant increase in credit risk the
company compares the risk of a default occurrinS on the aaset as at the reportin8 date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. lt consideIs available reasonable and supponive forwarding,looling information.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty tails to make contra.tual payment! when they fall due. This definition of default
i5 determined byconsiderinB the businett environment in which entityoperate5 and other macro-economic factors.

The carrying amount of trade receivables and unbilled revenues represents the marimum credit exposure faom customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risl from customers i5 INR 9,11,42,991 (March 31, 2019 : INR 86,043,106 ). The lifetime exp€cted credit loss
on customer balance for the year ended March 31, 2020 is 1NR41,65,094 (March 31,2019 : tNR 4,203,076).

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision -Trade rcceiyables and lJnbilled revenue

unt in lN

- Other Financial As5et5

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, investments carried at a

and olher financial assets reprerents the maxjmum credit exposure. The ma
2019: INR 2,83,10,280 ). The 12 months expected credit toss and tifetime
ended March 31,2020 is INR 19,48,012 (March 31,2019j tNR 25,69,012 )

mortised cost, deposits with banls and financial institutions
ximum exposure to credit rirk is INR 2,63,13,197 (March 31,
expected credit loss on these financial assets for tha year

\

Particula15 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Eal.nae at thc beginninS

lmpairment loss recoSnised/reversed

Bal.nce at the end

42,O3,O76

(37,983)

4L,55,@4

40,5s,691

L,47,345

42,03,075

c

t

o
H

4z
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nt in lN

(iii) Uquidity rirkr
Uquidity rirk relers to the ritk that the Company cannot meet its financial obliSation!. The obledive of liquidity risk mana8ement is to
maintain sulficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for ure a5 per requirements.

The Company consistently generated sufficient cash flow from operations !o meet its financial obliSation as and when they fall due

The table below provides details reBardinE the con!ractual maturitier of 5itnificant financial liabilities as at :

Merch 31 2020

March 31,2019

in INR

(Amount in lN

Particulart March 31,2020 March 31, 20X9

12 monti life-dme
exPected lo55€5 erqEcled lorses

llfetime
expeded

losses

12 month
exPect€d losses

25,59,012

{5,21,0001

25,69,012Sal.nce at the be8innlns
Add(tess): Chantes in loss allowances due to
ChanBes in risk parameters
galance at the end 19,48,012 25,59,O12

Oue in l year Du€ in l-2 year Due in 2-S year
Due aftea 5

Total

2,O3,64,369

57,68,061

t,62,766

Non-deriyatve fi nanci.l liabllities :

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities
Lea5e Liabilities (lND ASU6)

Total 2,72,95,196 2,72,95,t95

Due in 1 year Due in 2-5 year Due atter 5
Total

3,59,58,046

94,94,643
3,59,58,046

94,94,643

Non-deriv.tiue ff nanaiel liabilities :

Trade and other payables

Other financial liabilities

Totel 4,54,52,589 4,54,52,689
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2,O3,64,269

67,68,061

r,62,766

$

Due in 1-2 year
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The amount of a$ets a5 tor.urent.nd non current

CURRENTASSETS

i. Fin.nci.lAssets
(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

{iii) Other Financial Assets

il. t{on Flnanclal Assets

OtherCurrent Asset5

4,80.39,951

2,25,33,2!O

4,05,40,913

1,85,72,589

4,52,45,281

2,25,66,504

3,95,40,514

2,14,62,230

NON CURRENIASSEIS

Computer Hardwares

Office Equipments
25,Q,946

65,548

40,08,262

84,893

Total non current assets pledg€ ai security 4O,93,155

q

36 of41

ASSETS

Ma.ch 31,2020

Total current assets pledre as secudtv L2,96,46,613 12,84.14.528

26.07.594



(Amount in l R)

29, OFFSETNNG FII{AI{CIAL ASSETS ANO FINAI{CIAL UABITITIES

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset and other agreements but not ofJset, as at March 31, 2020 and March 31,

2019.The column'net amount'shows the impact on the company's balance sheet if a ll iet-off rights were exercised.

Effects ot ofrsettinS on the balanae sheet Related amounts not oft€t

6ross amounl
Gtoss amounBset
oft in the balance

sheet

Net amount
prcsentcd in tha

balance sheet

&nounE sllbrccts
to mastcr n€tdng

aranSement9
llet amount

Mar.h 31, 2020

Finandal asets
Trade receivables

Deposits

Loan to Related Partie5

lnterest accrued

Total

Finan.ial llabilltlcs
Trade Payables

Total

March 3t, 2019

Flnanaial ailets
Trade receivable5

0epoiits
Loans

loan to Related Parties

lnterest accrued

Total

Financi.l liabilldcs
Trade Payables

Total

l'1,o3,75,2341

(17,98,86,635)

|L,15,45,032l.

480,39,961
2,28,999

20,s2,r6,26L

15,02,975

(4,80,39,961)

2,28,E 9

20,52,16,261

L6,02,916

46,28,9s,098 (20,78,06,901) 25,50,88,197 (4,80,39,961) 20,70,44,216

22,8t ,7t,210 20,7I,06,901 2,O3,64,369 7,O3,54,369

22,AL7\27O 20,78,06,90r 2,O3,&,169 2,O3,64,369

5,52,89,418

15,17,999

67,00,000

47,26,14,988

L3,93,35.524

11,\o,44,t371

(57,00,000)

124 ,23,29,1021

111,7 6,79,7591

4,52,4s,281

15,17,999

23,02,85,886

16,56,765

14,s2,45,28t)
(12,E9,000) 2,28,999

23,02,85,886

15.56,765

67 ,64,38,929 139,77,52,9991 z7 ,47 ,os,9r0 (4,55,34.28r) 23,21.71.550

43,37,11,045 39 ,77 ,52,999 3,59,58,045

43,r7,Ll,U5 39,77,52,999 3,59,58,046 3,59.58,046
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Flnanclal

instrumants
(ollateral

5,84,15,195

2,28,999

38,51,02,895

1,91,48,008

3,59,s8,045



ount in INR)

For the purpose ofthe company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference rhares, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary obiective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
sha reholder value.

The Company manates it5 capital st.ucture and makes adjustments in light of changei in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital strudure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearint ratio, which is net debt divided by total .apital plus net debt. The Company includes

within debt, interest bearin8 loans and borrowints, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excludinS discontinued operations.

Particulars March 31, 2020 Mar.h 31, 2019

Trade payables

Other payables

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net Debt

Equity

Other Equity

Total Capital

capital and net debt
Gearint ratio

2,03,54,369

7,78,32,279

.2,25,13,2t0].

3,59,58,046

2,12,51,978
(2,25,55,s04)

1,56.63,438 3,46,49,52t

10,00,000

43,L4,50,729

10,00,000

41,36,58,483

43,24,50,7 29 41,46,s8,483

44,4\L4,t67 44,93,08,004

3 8

\B Pa)

z -.t

t
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31. |-EASES

Transidon

Effeclive Ap.il 1,2019, the Company adopted lnd AS 115, teases and applied the standard to all lease contracts existinS on April 1, 2Ol9
using the modified rctrospective melhod and has taken th€ cumulative adjustment to rctained eamings, on the date ot inhial application.
consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value ofthe lease payments discount€d at the incremental borrowing
rate and lhe ROt asset at als carying amount as it th€ rtandard had been applied since the commencement date o, the lease, but
discounted at the Company's incremental borrowint rate at the date of initial application. Comparatives a5 at and tor the year ended March
31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore w-illconlinue lo be reported underthe accountint polici€s included as parl of
our AnnualRepon for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in reco8nition of 'Right of Use' asset of INR qlgzgg and lease liability of tNR
q3&Z@ The cumulative effect of applying the standard, amountint to INR 18,072 was debited to retained earnings, net oftaxes. The erfect
of this adoption is insiSnificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earninSs per share. lnd AS 116 has resulted in ao increase
in cash inflows trom operating activities and an inc.ease in cash outllows from financing activitie5 on account of leare payments.

The fotlowing is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application :

1. Applied a sinSle discount rate to a portfolio or leases of similar arsets in rimilar economic environment wth a sinilar end date.

2. Applied the eremption not to recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial
application.

3. Excluded the initialdirect costs from the measurement ofthe ROU asset at the date of initial application.

4. Applied the practicalerpedient to Srandfather the assessment ofwhich trangactions are leases. Aacordingly, lnd AS 11,6 is applied only to
contracts that were previously identified a5 leases under lnd AS 17.

The difference between the l€a5e obligation recorded as of March 31, 2019 under lnd AS 17 disclosed under Note 31 of the Standalone
financial statements lorming part of the 2019 Annual Repon and the value of the lease liability as ofApril 1,2019 is primarily on account of
inclusion ofextension and te.mination options reasonably certain to b€ exercised, in measu.ing the lease liability in acaordanae with lnd AS
116 and discounting the lease liabilities to tha present value lnder Ind AS 116.

The weighted average incremental borowing rate applied to lease liabitities as al April 01, 2019 is lllEi
The changes in the carryin8 value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2O2O are as follows :

in lNRl

The aStreEate depreciation expense on Rou assets is included under depreciation and amoniaation expense in the statement of profit and
The break-up ofcurrent and non current lease liabilities as at March 31,2020 is a, tollows:

(Amount in l R)

Particule.s Catetory of ROU

fus€t

Ealance as at 01,2019 5,18,708
Reclasiified on account ofadoption of lnd AS 11G (Refer to Note
Additions
Deletion

Depreciation
{4,57,866)

Balance as at March 31, 2020
50.442

Particulars
As at March 31,

2020
Current [ease tiabilitie5

62,766Non-Current Lea5e taabilitie5
0Total

1 52,766
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The movement in lease liabilities durin8 the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows

in lN

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities a5 at March 3 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

The Company does not face a siSnificant liquidity risk with regard lo its lease liabilities as the cudent assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they lall due.

Rentalexpense reco.ded for short-term leases wa5 tNR 7,54,698 for the year ended Marrh 31, 2020.

Rental income on a5set5 given on operatint lease to subsidiaries was INR !i! for the year ended March 31, 2020.

\

Particulars For Year Ended

March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginninS 5,35,780
Additions

Finance cost accrued duringthe period 35,502
Deletions

Payment of lease liabilities {5,10,515)
Translation difference
Balance at the end 62,166

Particulars As at March 31,

2020

Less than one year 1,54,683
One to five years

More than five years

Total 1,64,683
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(Amount in INR)

32. DETAITS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALT ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALTAND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES

DEVETOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACr, 2005)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2005'

lnterest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount
Payment made to suppliers ( other than interest ) beyond the appointed day, during
the year

lnterest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, ( other than Section 16 )

lnterest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, (Section 16 )
lnterest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already made

lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under
MSMED Act, 2005

9,57 ,952 'J.2,87,056

* Amount includes due and unpaid of INR Nil (March 31, 2019: INR Nil)

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Mico and Small"

enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.

33, The accounts of certain Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans and Advances and Banks are however, subiest to formal
confirmations / reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, the management does not expect any material
difference affecting the current years financial statements on such reconciliations / adjustments.

34. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's

presentation.

A.iavPadmanabhan I

Chairman

DIN: 05262942

Director
DIN:07652605

Date : May 21, 2020

Navi Mumbai
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